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Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

Certain statements included herein constitute “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation
Reform Act of 1995 that involve a number of risks and uncertainties. Certain such forward-looking statements can be identified by the
use of forward-looking terminology such as “believes,” “expects,” “may,” “will,” “should,” “seeks,” “scheduled,” or “anticipates” or
similar expressions or the negative thereof or other variations thereof or comparable terminology, or by discussions of strategy, plans,
or intentions. In addition, all information included herein with respect to projected or future results of operations, cash flows, financial
condition, financial performance, or other financial or statistical matters constitute forward-looking statements. Such forward-looking
statements are necessarily dependent on assumptions, data, or methods that may be incorrect or imprecise and that may be incapable
of being realized. The following factors, among others, could cause actual results and other matters to differ materially from those in
such forward-looking statements:

99 <

e declines in the financial condition or performance of Honda Motor Co., Ltd. or the sales of Honda or Acura products;
e changes in economic and general business conditions;
o fluctuations in interest rates and currency exchange rates;

o the failure of our customers, dealers or counterparties in the financial industry to meet the terms of any contracts with us,
or otherwise fail to perform as agreed;

e our inability to recover the estimated residual value of leased vehicles at the end of their lease terms;
e changes or disruption in our funding sources or access to the capital markets;
e changes in our, or Honda Motor Co., Ltd.’s, credit ratings;

e increases in competition from other financial institutions seeking to increase their share of financing of Honda and Acura
products;

e changes in laws and regulations, including as a result of financial services legislation, and related costs;
e changes in accounting standards;
o afailure or interruption in our operations; and

e asecurity breach or cyber attack.

Additional information regarding these and other risks and uncertainties to which our business is subject is contained in our Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended March 31, 2015, as updated by our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
June 30, 2015. Readers of this Quarterly Report should review the additional information contained in those reports, and in any
subsequent Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q that we file with the Securities and Exchange Commission. We do not intend, and
undertake no obligation to, update any forward-looking information to reflect actual results or future events or circumstances, except
as required by applicable law.
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Shareholder’s equity:

PART I - FINANCIAL INFORMATION

AMERICAN HONDA FINANCE CORPORATION
AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (UNAUDITED)
(U.S. dollars in millions, except share amounts)

Assets

Common stock, $100 par value. Authorized 15,000,000 shares; issued and outstanding

13,660,000 shares as of September 30, 2015 and March 31, 2015
RELAINET BAIMINGS ...ttt b et b et b e bbb se bt ebe e e bt ebese e bt ebesb et et st e e ebesae e ebe e
Accumulated other comprehensive loss

Total Shareholder’s ©QUILY .. ..o.viueeieiiireii ittt ene s

Noncontrolling interest in subsidiary

LI ] ¥ LT U2 PSP OSR
Total liabilitieS and EQUILY .......eeieie et ae e

September 30, March 31,
2015 2015
$ 714 $ 634
36,856 38,464
26,579 24,439
178 104
17 66
129 138
761 723
277 237
$ 65,511 $ 64,805
$ 44,981 $ 44,689
92 71
89 93
106 -
6,983 7,145
1,297 1,246
372 371
53,920 53,615
1,366 1,366
9,686 9,248
(110) (75)
10,942 10,539
649 651
11,591 11,190
$ 65,511 $ 64,805

The following table presents the assets and liabilities of consolidated variable interest entities. These assets and liabilities are included
in the consolidated balance sheets presented above. Refer to Note 9 for additional information.

Finance receivables, net....................
Vehicles held for disposition.............
Other aSSetS .......eeeeeeveeeeeeeiie e

Total aSSetS.......coevvvvvveerernnne.

Secured debt.........ocoiiiiiiiiiiin
Accrued interest exXpense ..................
Total liabilities.....................

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

September 30, March 31,
2015 2015

$ 7583 % 7,354
3 3
287 270
$ 7873  $ 7,627
$ 7,183 $ 7,365
3 2
$ 7,186 $ 7,367




AMERICAN HONDA FINANCE CORPORATION
AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME (UNAUDITED)
(U.S. dollars in millions)

Three months ended Six months ended
September 30, September 30,
2015 2014 2015 2014
Revenues:
Direct finanCing 18aSES...........cueueureiieirirsiseese s $ 19 $ 36 % 43 % 75
RELAI ...t e 301 329 602 663
DRAIET ... e 30 29 60 59
OPErating [EASES. .......veeiuireiiiiiriiieisieiee st 1,353 1,195 2,661 2,342
TOtAl FEVENUES ...t 1,703 1,589 3,366 3,139
Depreciation on operating 18aSeS ..........coeiiiriiiiireieiseseisieseeneens 1,077 943 2,117 1,846
INEEIESE EXPENSE .. .vieviiie ittt 143 146 283 296
NEL FTEVENUES ...ttt 483 500 966 997
Gain on disposition of lease VENICIES ...........ccvverviiinciiice, 8 12 30 38
OFher INCOME.....cviitiiticiiiieie ettt sresneereanes 24 24 48 48
Total NEt FEVENUES ..o, 515 536 1,044 1,083
Expenses:
General and administrative EXPeNSES........ccovevvveververieeseeneeieneenns 103 100 203 199
Provision for Credit 10SSES.........ccveueiiieiiiineiieiee s 35 30 66 51
Early termination 10ss on operating 1€ases..........ccccevvvevvivveivennennn,s 18 14 29 18
Loss on lease residual ValUES ............cocoviieiinieiiciience e, 2 2 3 2
(Gain)/Loss on derivative iNStrumMents...........cccevevveveereeiesieennenn, (18) 150 3) 132
(Gain)/Loss on foreign currency revaluation of debt...................... 11 (167) 35 (179)
TOtal EXPENSES ...vvveeiieiiccie et 151 129 333 223
Income before INCOME taXeS .....ccvvvvevireiieiieieiere e, 364 407 711 860
INCOME TaX EXPENSE ...ttt e 124 143 244 302
NEL INCOME ..o st eneeneenns 240 264 467 558
Less: Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest ..................... 12 17 29 35
Net income attributable to
American Honda Finance Corporation ............cccccceeeeereevenen, $ 228 $ 247  $ 438 % 523
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (UNAUDITED)
(U.S. dollars in millions)
Three months ended Six months ended
September 30, September 30,
2015 2014 2015 2014
NEE INCOME ..ttt st bbb ne b e e $ 240 % 264 % 467 % 558
Other comprehensive loss:
Foreign currency translation adjustment............ccoceoeeveriinennenn, (85) (72) (66) (21)
Comprenensive INCOME .........coviereeiiriecene s 155 192 401 537
Less: Comprehensive income/(loss) attributable to
NONCONEIOIING INTEIESE ...t (28) (17) 2) 25
Comprehensive income attributable to
American Honda Finance Corporation.............cccceveveaas $ 183  § 209 % 403 % 512

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.



AMERICAN HONDA FINANCE CORPORATION

AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (UNAUDITED)

(U.S. dollars in millions)

Accumulated

other
Retained comprehensive Common Noncontrolling
Total earnings income/(loss) stock interest
Balance at March 31, 2014 ...................... 3 10,393 $ 8,306 $ 27 $ 1,366 $ 694
NEt INCOME ...oeiiiiiecieccce e 558 523 - - 35
Other comprehensive 10SS ..........coccoeeeienen. (21) - (12) - (10)
Balance at September 30, 2014 ................ $ 10930 $ 8,829 3 16 $ 1366 $ 719
Balance at March 31, 2015 ....................... $ 11,190 $ 9,248 $ (75) $ 1,366 $ 651
NEt INCOME ....eiieiiiciiceccecee e 467 438 - - 29
Other comprehensive 10SS .........ccoceeeieiennen. (66) - (35) - (31)
Balance at September 30, 2015 ................ 3$ 11591 $ 9,686 $ (110) $ 1,366 $ 649

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.




AMERICAN HONDA FINANCE CORPORATION
AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (UNAUDITED)
(U.S. dollars in millions)

Six months ended

September 30,
2015 2014
Cash flows from operating activities:
NEL INCOME ...ttt et e bbb bbb s e s bbbttt s e e e e st et b bt erer e e s $ 467 $ 558
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Debt and derivative instrument valuation adjustments............ccccevevereriesesieesese e (7) (183)
Loss on lease residual values and provision for credit 10SSeS........ccccvvvveiiiieeicie s, 69 53
Early termination 10SS 0N OPErating l8aSES ........c.cvvevverereieiieeeiese e 29 18
Depreciation and amMOrtiZAtION .........cceieieiieeieeieeieiesese e se e ae e te e sra s e esaesaesaeseesrearenneens 2,119 1,850
Accretion of unearned SUDSIAY INCOME ..ot (551) (540)
Amortization of deferred dealer participation and IDC...........cccoceiiiriniineneiieeseesies 162 172
Gain on disposition of lease vehicles and fiXed @SSEtS .........ccovvvrereiiieieiiieree e (30) (37)
Deferred inCOME taX DENETIT........coiiiiiii e (151) (194)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Income taxes receivable/Payable ..o 154 195
OBNEE BSSEES ...t ettt bbbttt bttt b bbbttt b ettt b (28) (16)
Accrued interest/diSCouNtS 0N AEDT ...........ciiiiiiiierieiie e 21 20
OLher TIADTIITIES ..ot 72 (26)
Due to/from Parent and affiliated COMPANIES .......o.evviiriiiiiiriieiiee s (53) (12)
Net cash provided by operating aCtiVities...........cccovereiiiniiiiiicses e 2,273 1,859
Cash flows from investing activities:
Finance receivables aCQUITET ..........coviiee ettt reeee e (7,812) (9,314)
Principal collected on finanCe reCeIVADIES...........oiuviieiie e 8,745 9,305
Net change in WhOIESAIE 10ANS...........uiiiiiieie ettt aearae s 249 759
Purchase of operating 18858 VENICIES ........cooiiiiiiiii et (8,122) (7,279)
Disposal of operating 1ease VENICIES ...........cccvoiiiii it 3,543 3,216
Cash received for unearned SUDSIAY INCOME.........couiiiiiiiiiiieiiesie e e e ene e 717 685
Other INVEStING ACHIVITIES, NEL .......iiiiciece et re e eneesne e (26) (1)
Net cash used in INVEStING ACLIVITIES........ccuiiiieiie e (2,706) (2,629)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of COMMErCial PAPET.........coiueiieiieieeie e 19,460 20,314
Paydown of COMMETICIAI PAPET ......eiviieiiitiiiiie bbb et ebe e (19,948) (17,812)
Proceeds from issuance of related party debt ..........cccooiieiiiiniiiieie e 11,359 21,592
Paydown of related party debt ... (11,874) (21,306)
Proceeds from issuance of medium term notes and other debt...........ccoevveiviiiciiiiiic e, 4,958 3,490
Paydown of medium term notes and Other debt...........ccooriiiiiiii s (3,266) (4,428)
Proceeds from issUance 0f SECUrEA DL ........ccviiveiiirii i sae e e 2,233 1,994
Paydown OF SECUIEA AEDT ..ottt ebe e (2,408) (2,565)
Net cash provided by finanCing aCtIVITIES. .......ccoeiviiiiiiii e 514 1,279
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalentS...........cccoevviiieiiiieis s 1) -
Net increase in cash and cash eQUIVAIENTS ..........coviiiiiiiiiiiie e 80 509
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning Of Year ...........coooiiiiiiii i 634 138
Cash and cash equivalents at eNd OF YR .........cooiiiiiiiii e e $ 714 % 647
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
LT (=T = 1O UL OO RO U $ 269 $ 326
INCOME TAXES PAIM ....vevieeiiitiiee ettt bbbt b ettt be e 241 301

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.



AMERICAN HONDA FINANCE CORPORATION
AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)

(1) Interim Information

(@)

(b)

(©)

(d)

Organizational Structure

American Honda Finance Corporation (AHFC) is a wholly owned subsidiary of American Honda Motor Co., Inc. (AHM
or the Parent). Honda Canada Finance Inc. (HCFI) is a majority-owned subsidiary of AHFC. Noncontrolling interest in
HCFI is held by Honda Canada Inc. (HCI), an affiliate of AHFC. AHM is a wholly owned subsidiary and HCI is an
indirect wholly owned subsidiary of Honda Motor Co., Ltd. (HMC). AHM and HCI are the sole authorized distributors of
Honda and Acura products, including motor vehicles, parts, and accessories in the United States and Canada.

Unless otherwise indicated by the context, all references to the “Company”, “we”, “us”, and “our” in this report include
AHFC and its consolidated subsidiaries, and references to “AHFC” refer solely to American Honda Finance Corporation
(excluding AHFC’s subsidiaries).

Basis of Presentation

The unaudited consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) for interim information, and instructions to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q and Rule
10-01 of Regulation S-X. In the opinion of management, these unaudited interim financial statements include all
adjustments, consisting of normal recurring adjustments, necessary for a fair statement of the results of operations, cash
flows, and financial condition for the interim periods presented. Results for interim periods should not be considered
indicative of results for the full year or for any other interim period. These unaudited interim financial statements should
be read in conjunction with the Company’s audited consolidated financial statements, significant accounting policies, and
the other notes to the consolidated financial statements for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2015 included in the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K, which was filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on June
26, 2015. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated upon consolidation.

Recently Adopted Accounting Standards

Effective April 1, 2015, the Company adopted Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2015-03, Interest—Imputation of
Interest (Subtopic 835-30): Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs. The amendments require that debt
issuance costs related to a recognized debt liability be presented in the balance sheet as a direct deduction from the
carrying amount of that debt liability, consistent with debt discounts. In August 2015, the Financial Accounting Standards
Board (FASB) issued ASU 2015-15, Presentation and Subsequent Measurement of Debt Issuance Costs Associated with
Line-of-Credit Arrangements. This ASU states that the SEC staff would not object to an entity deferring and presenting
debt issuance costs as an asset and subsequently amortizing deferred debt issuance costs ratably over the term of the line-
of-credit arrangement, regardless of whether there are outstanding borrowings under the line-of-credit arrangement. The
adoption of these ASU’s did not have material impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers and created the new Accounting
Standards Codification (ASC) Topic 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, and added ASC Subtopic 340-40,
Other Assets and Deferred Costs—Contracts with Customers. The guidance in this update supersedes the revenue
recognition requirements in ASC Topic 605, Revenue Recognition, and most industry-specific guidance throughout the
industry topics of the codification. In August 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-14, Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Topic 606): Deferral of the Effective Date, which defers the effective date for the Company from April 1,
2017 to April 1, 2018 while permitting early adoption as of April 1, 2017. The Company is currently assessing the impact
the adoption of this guidance will have on the consolidated financial statements.
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AMERICAN HONDA FINANCE CORPORATION
AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)

In August 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-15, Presentation of Financial Statements—Going Concern (Subtopic 205-
40): Disclosure of Uncertainties about an Entity’s Ability to Continue as a Going Concern. The amendments require
management to assess an entity’s ability to continue as a going concern by incorporating and expanding upon certain
principles that are currently in U.S. auditing standards. The amendments are effective for the fiscal year ending March 31,
2017 and interim periods thereafter. The adoption of this new standard is not expected to have an impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

In February 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-02, Consolidation (Topic 810): Amendments to the Consolidation
Analysis. Under the amendments in this update, all reporting entities are within the scope of Subtopic 810-10,
Consolidation—Overall, including limited partnerships and similar legal entities, unless a scope exception applies. The
amendments are effective for the Company beginning on April 1, 2016. The Company is currently assessing the impact on
the consolidated financial statements.

Finance Receivables
Finance receivables consisted of the following:

September 30, 2015

Lease Retail Dealer Total
(U.S. dollars in millions)
Finance receivables .......cccovvviecererneeeees e $ 1,375 $ 31,993 % 4,002 $ 37,370
Allowance for credit 10SSeS.......cccvevverviievieiee e (2) (91) - (93)
Write-down of lease residual values..........c...ccccoveveennnnne (12) - - (12)
Unearned interest income and fees.........c.coceevveneenennn (40) - - (40)
Deferred dealer participation and IDC ..........cc.cccceevnienee. 2 378 - 380
Unearned subsidy iNCOME.........ccoecvvirnenenneneecee (50) (699) - (749)
$ 1273  $ 31,581 $ 4002 $ 36,856
March 31, 2015
Lease Retail Dealer Total
(U.S. dollars in millions)
Finance receivables ..o $ 1956 $ 32,792 % 4256 % 39,004
Allowance for credit 10SSES.........ccovrvvireneireneeeiee (2) (84) - (86)
Write-down of lease residual values............c.ccooeovenennn. (13) - - (13)
Unearned interest income and fees.........c.coeevvenvenenen (64) - - (64)
Deferred dealer participation and IDC ...........c.cccceevnueneen. 8 390 - 393
Unearned subsidy iNCOME.........ccoevvririieninieieec e (80) (690) - (770)
$ 1,800 $ 32,408 $ 4256 $ 38,464

Finance receivables include retail loans with a principal balance of $7.7 billion and $7.4 billion as of September 30, 2015 and
March 31, 2015, respectively, which have been transferred to securitization trusts and considered to be legally isolated but do
not qualify for sale accounting treatment. These finance receivables are restricted as collateral for the payment of the related
secured debt obligations. Refer to Note 9 for additional information.

The uninsured portions of the lease residual values were $221 million and $298 million at September 30, 2015 and March 31,
2015, respectively. Included in the gain or loss on disposition of lease vehicles are end of term charges on both direct financing
and operating leases of $6 million and $4 million for the three months ended September 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively, and
$13 million and $10 million for the six months ended September 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively.



AMERICAN HONDA FINANCE CORPORATION
AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)
Credit Quality of Financing Receivables

Credit losses are an expected cost of extending credit. The majority of the credit risk is with consumer financing and to a lesser
extent with dealer financing. Credit risk can be affected by general economic conditions. Adverse changes such as a rise in
unemployment rates can increase the likelihood of defaults. Declines in used vehicle prices can reduce the amount of recoveries
on repossessed collateral. Credit risk on dealer loans is affected primarily by the financial strength of the dealers within the
portfolio. Exposure to credit risk is managed through purchasing standards, pricing of contracts for expected losses, focusing
collection efforts to minimize losses, and ongoing reviews of the financial condition of dealers.

Allowance for Credit Losses

The allowance for credit losses is management’s estimate of probable losses incurred on finance receivables, which requires
significant judgment and assumptions that are inherently uncertain. The allowance is based on management’s evaluation of

many factors, including the Company’s historical credit loss experience, the value of the underlying collateral, delinquency

trends, and economic conditions.

Consumer finance receivables in the retail loan and direct financing lease portfolio segments are collectively evaluated for
impairment. Delinquencies and losses are monitored on an ongoing basis and this historical experience provides the primary
basis for estimating the allowance. Management utilizes various methodologies when estimating the allowance for credit losses
including models which incorporate vintage loss and delinquency migration analysis. These models take into consideration
attributes of the portfolio including loan-to-value ratios, internal and external credit scores, and collateral types. Market and
economic factors such as used vehicle prices, unemployment rates, and consumer debt service burdens are also incorporated into
these models.

Dealer loans are individually evaluated for impairment when specifically identified as impaired. Dealer loans are considered to
be impaired when it is probable that the Company will be unable to collect all amounts due according to the terms of the
contract. The Company’s determination of whether dealer loans are impaired is based on evaluations of dealership payment
history, financial condition, and ability to perform under the terms of the loan agreements. Dealer loans that have not been
specifically identified as impaired are collectively evaluated for impairment.

There were no modifications to dealer loans that constituted troubled debt restructurings during the three and six months ended
September 30, 2015 and 2014.

The Company generally does not grant concessions on consumer finance receivables that are considered to be troubled debt
restructurings other than modifications of retail loans in reorganization proceedings pursuant to the U.S. Bankruptcy Code.
Retail loans modified under bankruptcy protection were not material to the Company’s consolidated financial statements during
the three and six months ended September 30, 2015 and 2014. The Company does allow payment deferrals on consumer finance
receivables. However, these payment deferrals are not considered to be troubled debt restructurings since the deferrals are
deemed to be insignificant and interest continues to accrue during the deferral period.
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The following is a summary of the activity in the allowance for credit losses of finance receivables:

Beginning balance, July 1, 2015........ccccccceveieiinniieenns
PrOVISION. ..ottt
Charge-0ffS.......couiiieiieiese e
RECOVEIIES ...t
Effect of translation adjustment...........cc.cccveeneinennen.
Ending balance, September 30, 2015 .........ccccceveverennns

Beginning balance, April 1, 2015.........ccccceeeveveiinieanns
PrOVISION......cviviieiiiieiictcie e
Charge-0ffS.....c.ccoeiieiicec e
RECOVEIIES ...
Effect of translation adjustment............c.cccccvevveinnnnne
Ending balance, September 30, 2015 .........c.ccceeverieennnne
Allowance for credit losses — ending balance:
Individually evaluated for impairment......................
Collectively evaluated for impairment..................

Finance receivables — ending balance:

Individually evaluated for impairment......................
Collectively evaluated for impairment..................

Beginning balance, July 1, 2014..........cccccovreiieneienennns
PrOVISION. ....ooiiiieieieiee e
Charge-0ffS......coiiiiiiiee e
RECOVEIIES ..o
Effect of translation adjustment...........ccccoovvenennennn.
Ending balance, September 30, 2014 .........cccccevcvrvrrennns

Beginning balance, April 1, 2014 ...........cccccevvvevieiiennnnns
PrOVISION. ..ot s
Charge-0ffS.......ccoeiiiiieece e
RECOVEIIES ...t
Effect of translation adjustment..............cccccoevveiiennnnne
Ending balance, September 30, 2014 .........cccccevcvrvrnannns
Allowance for credit losses — ending balance:
Individually evaluated for impairment......................
Collectively evaluated for impairment..................

Finance receivables — ending balance:

Individually evaluated for impairment......................
Collectively evaluated for impairment..................

Three and six months ended September 30, 2015

Lease Retail Dealer Total
(U.S. dollars in millions)
2 3 91 $ 1 94
- 31 1) 30
(1) (47) - (48)
1 16 - 17
2 $ 91 $ - 93
2 3 84 % = 86
1 57 1) 57
) (85) - (87)
1 35 1 37
2 $ 91 $ - 93
- % - % - -
2 91 - 93
- % - 3% - -
1,287 31,672 4,002 36,961
Three and six months ended September 30, 2014
Lease Retail Dealer Total
(U.S. dollars in millions)
4 $ 9% 3 = 99
- 25 - 25
1) (45) - (46)
- 16 - 16
3 3 91 % - 94
4 3 9% 3 1 100
1 41 - 42
(2) (84) (1) (87)
- 39 - 39
3 3 91 % - 94
- % - % - -
3 91 - 94
- $ - $ 30 30
2,531 34,590 3,657 40,778
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Delinquencies

The following is an aging analysis of past due finance receivables:

Current or Total
30 - 59 days 60 — 89 days or greater Total less than 30 finance
past due past due past due days past due receivables
(U.S. dollars in millions)
September 30, 2015

Retail loans:
NEW aUt0......coeveeeeieiereae, $ 180 $ 36 9 $ 225 27,142 $ 27,367
Used and certified auto....... 61 12 3 76 3,161 3,237
Motorcycle and other.......... 12 4 2 18 1,050 1,068
Total retail ...........c......... 253 52 14 319 31,353 31,672
Direct financing leases............. 6 2 1 9 1,278 1,287

Dealer loans:
Wholesale flooring ............. 1 - - 1 3,190 3,191
Commercial loans............... - - - 811 811
Total dealer loans.......... 1 - - 1 4,001 4,002

Total finance

receivables.................. $ 260 $ 54 15 $ 329 36,632 $ 36,961

March 31, 2015

Retail loans:
NEeW auto........cceevververriennens $ 141 $ 17 6 $ 164 28,017 $ 28,181
Used and certified auto........ 46 6 2 54 3,234 3,288
Motorcycle and other.......... 9 3 1 13 1,010 1,023
Total retail ..................... 196 26 9 231 32,261 32,492
Direct financing leases............. 8 1 1 10 1,805 1,815

Dealer loans:
Wholesale flooring ............. 1 - 1 3,457 3,458
Commercial loans............... - - - 798 798
Total dealer loans.......... 1 - - 1 4,255 4,256

Total finance

receivables.................. $ 205 $ 27 10 $ 242 38,321 $ 38,563
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Credit Quality Indicators
Retail Loan and Direct Financing Lease Portfolio Segments

The Company utilizes proprietary credit scoring systems to evaluate the credit risk of applicants for retail loans and leases. The
scoring systems assign internal credit scores based on various factors including the applicant’s credit bureau information and
contract terms. The internal credit score provides the primary basis for credit decisions when acquiring retail loan and lease
contracts. Internal credit scores are determined only at the time of origination and are not reassessed during the life of the
contract.

Subsequent to origination, collection experience provides a current indication of the credit quality of consumer finance
receivables. The likelihood of accounts charging off becomes significantly higher once an account becomes 60 days delinquent.
Accounts that are current or less than 60 days past due are considered to be performing. Accounts that are 60 days or more past
due are considered to be nonperforming. The table below presents the Company’s portfolio of retail loans and direct financing
leases by this credit quality indicator:

Total
Retail Retail Direct consumer
Retail used and motorcycle financing finance
new auto certified auto and other lease receivables
(U.S. dollars in millions)
September 30, 2015
Performing ......ccccoevevieveviciieseeieinnen $ 27322 $ 3222 $ 1,062 $ 1,284 $ 32,890
NONPerformMing.........ccceveveereneenennas 45 15 6 3 69
Total ..o $ 27,367 $ 3237 $ 1,068 $ 1,287 $ 32,959
March 31, 2015
Performing .......ccccocvvvevieiiieiee e, $ 28,158 $ 3,280 $ 1,019 $ 1813 $ 34,270
NOoNPerformMing.........ccceereeicreenennns 23 8 4 2 37
Total ..o $ 28,181 $ 3,288 $ 1,023 % 1815 $ 34,307

Dealer Loan Portfolio Segment

The Company utilizes an internal risk rating system to evaluate dealer credit risk. Dealerships are assigned an internal risk rating
based on an assessment of their financial condition. Factors including liquidity, financial strength, management effectiveness,
and operating efficiency are evaluated when assessing their financial condition. Financing limits and interest rates are
determined from these risk ratings. Monitoring activities including financial reviews and inventory inspections are performed
more frequently for dealerships with weaker risk ratings. The financial conditions of dealerships are reviewed and their risk
ratings are updated at least annually.

The Company’s outstanding portfolio of dealer loans has been divided into two groups in the tables below. Group A includes
the loans of dealerships with the strongest internal risk rating. Group B includes the loans of all remaining dealers. Although the
likelihood of losses can be higher for dealerships in Group B, the overall risk of losses is not considered to be significant.

September 30, 2015 March 31, 2015
Wholesale Commercial Wholesale Commercial
flooring loans Total flooring loans Total
(U.S. dollars in millions)
Group A.....cccoee. $ 2,076  $ 581 $ 2,657 $ 2281 $ 564 $ 2,845
GroupB................ 1,115 230 1,345 1,177 234 1,411
Total........ $ 3,191 $ 811 $ 4002 $ 3458 $ 798 $ 4,256
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AMERICAN HONDA FINANCE CORPORATION
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)
Investment in Operating Leases

Investment in operating leases consisted of the following:

September 30, March 31,
2015 2015
(U.S. dollars in millions)
OpPerating 18aSe VENICIES ........cueiiiiiieiiiieieeeit ettt nn et nn s $ 32,901 $ 30,288
AccumMUIAted dePrECIALION .........ivieiiiiiitee bbb (5,371) (5,070)
Deferred dealer participation and IDC ..........cccceieiiieieineniee et 107 98
Unearned SUDSIAY INCOME......iiiiieieiieie sttt st re st re e s e e et e aesresresneaneas (989) (819)
Estimated early termination [OSSES .........ceieieerierieiieieiisteseeeeeestesaesaestesressesseesseseessesaesaesresneanens (69) (58)
$ 26,579 $ 24,439

The Company recognized $18 million and $14 million of estimated early termination losses due to lessee defaults for the three
months ended September 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively. Actual net losses realized for the three months ended September 30,
2015 and 2014 totaled $12 million and $10 million, respectively. The Company recognized $29 million and $18 million of
estimated early termination losses due to lessee defaults for the six months ended September 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
Actual net losses realized for the six months ended September 30, 2015 and 2014 totaled $18 million and $16 million,
respectively.

Included in the provision for credit losses for both the three months ended September 30, 2015 and 2014 are provisions related
to past due receivables on operating leases in the amount of $5 million. Included in the provision for credit losses for both the
six months ended September 30, 2015 and 2014 are provisions related to past due receivables on operating leases in the amount
of $9 million.

The Company did not recognize impairment losses due to declines in estimated residual values during the three and six months
ended September 30, 2015 and 2014.

Debt

The Company issues debt in various currencies with both floating and fixed interest rates. Outstanding debt, weighted average
contractual interest rates and range of contractual interest rates were as follows:

Weighted average Contractual
contractual interest rate interest rate ranges
September 30, March 31, September 30, March 31, September 30, March 31,
2015 2015 2015 2015 2015 2015
(U.S. dollars in millions)
Unsecured debt:
Commercial paper-......... $ 4,038 $ 4,587 0.36% 0.37% 0.18-1.33% 0.15-1.33%
Related party debt ......... 2,902 3,492 0.49% 0.61% 0.17 - 0.99% 0.16 - 1.30%
Bank loans..................... 7,285 7,292 0.85% 0.84% 0.68-1.47% 0.61-1.73%
Private MTN program... 5,441 7,458 2.713% 245% 0.71-7.63% 0.64 - 7.63%
Public MTN program.... 14,716 10,938 1.23% 1.09% 0.28 - 2.45% 0.25-2.25%
Euro MTN programme.. 1,804 1,866 1.36% 1.30% 0.56 -2.23% 0.15 - 2.23%
Other debt.........cccceeeee 1,612 1,691 1.73% 1.85% 1.17-2.35% 1.40 - 2.35%
Total unsecured
debt ..o 37,798 37,324
Secured debt ... 7,183 7,365 0.90% 0.74% 0.24 - 1.56% 0.19 - 1.46%
Total debt.............. $ 44981 $ 44,689

As of September 30, 2015, the outstanding principal balance of long-term debt with floating interest rates totaled $14.5 billion
and long-term debt with fixed interest rates totaled $22.0 billion. As of March 31, 2015, the outstanding principal balance of
long-term debt with floating interest rates totaled $12.6 billion and long-term debt with fixed interest rates totaled $21.0 billion.
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Commercial Paper

As of September 30, 2015 and March 31, 2015, the Company had commercial paper programs that provide the Company with
available funds of up to $8.5 and $8.6 billion, respectively, at prevailing market interest rates for periods up to one year. The
commercial paper programs are supported by the Keep Well Agreements with HMC described in Note 6.

Outstanding commercial paper averaged $5.2 billion and $5.5 billion during the six months ended September 30, 2015 and
2014, respectively. The maximum balance outstanding at any month-end during the six months ended September 30, 2015 and
2014 was $5.9 billion and $6.7 billion, respectively.

Related Party Debt

AHFC routinely issues fixed rate short-term notes to AHM to help fund AHFC’s general corporate operations. The Company
incurred interest expense on these notes totaling $0.6 million and $1 million for the three months ended September 30, 2015 and
2014, respectively, and $1 million and $2 million for the six months ended September 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

HCFI routinely issues fixed rate short-term notes to HCI to help fund HCFI’s general corporate operations. The Company
incurred interest expense on these notes totaling $4 million and $6 million for the three months ended September 30, 2015 and
2014, respectively, and $8 million and $11 million for the six months ended September 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Bank Loans

Outstanding bank loans as of September 30, 2015 had floating interest rates. Outstanding bank loans have prepayment options.
No outstanding bank loans as of September 30, 2015 were supported by the Keep Well Agreements with HMC described in
Note 6.

Medium Term Note (MTN) Programs
Private MTN Program

AHFC no longer issues MTNs under the Rule 144A Private MTN Program. Notes outstanding under the Private MTN Program
as of September 30, 2015 were long-term, with either fixed or floating interest rates, and denominated in U.S. dollars.

Public MTN Program

In August 2015, AHFC increased the authorized maximum aggregate principal amount for issuance under the Public MTN
Program from $16.0 billion to $30.0 billion. The aggregate principal amount of MTNs offered under this program may be
increased from time to time. Notes outstanding under this program were both short-term and long-term, with either fixed or
floating interest rates, and denominated in U.S. dollars and Euros.

Euro MTN Programme

The Euro MTN Programme was retired in August 2014. Notes under this program that are currently listed on the Luxembourg
Stock Exchange will remain listed through their maturities. Notes outstanding under this program are long-term as of September
30, 2015 with either fixed or floating interest rates, and denominated in U.S. dollars, Japanese Yen, or Euros.

The MTN programs are supported by the Keep Well Agreement with HMC described in Note 6.

Other Debt

The outstanding balances as of September 30, 2015 consisted of private placement debt issued by HCFI, denominated in
Canadian dollars, with either fixed or floating interest rates. Private placement debt is supported by the Keep Well Agreement
with HMC described in Note 6.
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Secured Debt

The Company issues notes through secured financing transactions that are secured by assets held by the issuing securitization
trust. The notes generally have fixed interest rates (a limited number of notes had floating interest rates). Repayment on the
notes is dependent on the performance of the underlying receivables. Refer to Note 9 for additional information on the
Company’s secured financing transactions.

Credit Agreements
Syndicated Bank Credit Facilities

AHFC maintains a $3.5 billion 364 day credit agreement, as amended, which expires on March 4, 2016, and a $3.5 billion five
year credit agreement, as amended, which expires on March 7, 2020. At September 30, 2015, no amounts were outstanding or
repaid under the AHFC credit agreements. AHFC intends to renew or replace the credit agreements prior to or on their
respective expiration dates.

HCFI maintains a $1.2 billion credit agreement, as amended, which provides that HCFI may borrow up to $601 million on a one
year and a five-year revolving basis. The one year tranche of the credit agreement expires on March 24, 2016 and the five year
tranche of the credit agreement expires on March 24, 2020. At September 30, 2015, no amounts were outstanding or repaid
under the HCFI credit agreement. HCFI intends to renew or replace the credit agreement prior to or on the expiration date of
each respective tranche.

The credit agreements contain customary conditions to borrowing and customary restrictive covenants, including limitations on
liens and limitations on mergers, consolidations and asset sales. The credit agreements also require AHFC and HCFI,
respectively, to maintain a positive consolidated tangible net worth as defined in their respective credit agreements. The credit
agreements, in addition to other customary events of default, include cross-default provisions and provisions for default if HMC
does not maintain ownership, whether directly or indirectly, of at least 80% of the outstanding capital stock of AHFC or HCFI,
as applicable. In addition, the AHFC and HCFI credit agreements contain provisions for default if HMC’s obligations under the
HMC-AHFC Keep Well Agreement or the HMC-HCFI Keep Well Agreement, as applicable, become invalid, voidable, or
unenforceable. All of these conditions, covenants and events of default are subject to important limitations and exceptions under
the agreements governing the credit agreements. As of September 30, 2015, management believes that AHFC and HCFI were in
compliance with all covenants contained in the respective credit agreements.

Other Credit Agreements

In September 2015, AHFC entered into other committed lines of credit to allow the Company access to an additional $1.0
billion in unsecured funding with multiple banks. The credit agreements contain customary conditions to borrowing and
customary restrictive covenants, including limitations on liens and limitations on mergers, consolidations and asset sales and a
requirement for AHFC to maintain a positive consolidated tangible net worth. There were no amounts outstanding as of
September 30, 2015 and these agreements expire in September 2016.
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Derivative Instruments

The notional balances and gross fair values of the Company’s derivatives are presented below. The derivative instruments are

presented in the Company’s consolidated balance sheets on a gross basis by counterparty. Refer to Note 13 regarding the
valuation of derivative instruments.

September 30, 2015 March 31, 2015
Notional Notional
balances Assets Liabilities balances Assets Liabilities
(U.S. dollars in millions)
Interest rate swaps ....... $ 50,012 $ 272 $ 153 $ 49216 $ 236 $ 115
Cross currency swaps .. 2,646 5 219 1,385 1 256
Gross derivative
assets/liabilities ... 277 372 237 371
Counterparty netting
adjustment................. (133) (133) (97) (97)
Net derivative
assets/liabilities ... 3 144  $ 239 $ 140 $ 274

The income statement effect of derivative instruments is presented below. There were no derivative instruments designated as
part of a hedge accounting relationship during the periods presented.

Three months ended Six months ended
September 30, September 30,
2015 2014 2015 2014
(U.S. dollars in millions)
INEEFESt FALE SWAPS ..v.veveriririiriieeeieeererereseesesesesessensseseseseesesesesees $ 4 % 4 $ (28) $ 13
CrOSS CUITENCY SWAPS ...vevveveieeneenreniesresie s et sre e 14 (154) 31 (145)
Total gain/(loss) on derivative inStruments...........ccococeeveeeeen. $ 18 $ (150) $ 3 3 (132)

The fair value of derivative instruments is subject to the fluctuations in market interest rates and foreign currency exchange
rates. Since the Company has elected not to apply hedge accounting, the volatility in the changes in fair value of these derivative
instruments is recognized in earnings. All settlements of derivative instruments are recognized within cash flows from operating
activities in the consolidated statements of cash flows.

These derivative instruments also contain an element of credit risk in the event the counterparties are unable to meet the terms of
the agreements. However, the Company minimizes the risk exposure by limiting the counterparties to major financial
institutions that meet established credit guidelines. In the event of default, all counterparties are subject to legally enforceable

master netting agreements. The Company generally does not require or place collateral for these instruments under credit
support agreements.
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(6) Transactions Involving Related Parties
The following tables summarize the income statement and balance sheet impact of transactions with the Parent and affiliated

companies.
Three months ended Six months ended
September 30, September 30,
Income statement 2015 2014 2015 2014
(U.S. dollars in millions)
Revenue:
SUBSIAY INCOME ... $ 273 $ 268 % 544  $ 535
Interest expense:
Related party debt ..o 4 7 9 13
Other income:
VSC administration fees .......cccovvrvieiiniiiee e, 24 24 49 48
General and administrative expenses:
Support Compensation Agreement fees........ccoovvererienennnns, 5 5 9 9
Benefit plan eXPenSeS........ccvviieiieiee e 2 3 5 5
Shared SEIVICES.......coiviiiiieiec e 15 13 31 26
September 30, March 31,
Balance Sheet 2015 2015
(U.S. dollars in millions)
Assets:
Finance receivables, net:
Unearned SUDSIAY INCOME .....ccuiieiicieieie ettt sttt sa e tesaesbestaenaesaenaestesrenrenneans $ (735) $ (756)
Investment in operating leases, net:
Unearned SUDSIAY INCOME ......viiiieiie ettt e ae st steesaeeaeanaeensessaestaesbaebennnens (984) (816)
Due from Parent and affiliated COMPANIES .......cccveviiiieiicece e 178 104

Liabilities:

Debt:

REIAtEA PAItY GEDE .....oveiiviiieciiecictee ettt e sttt et e e se et e e st be e st ese e seetesessasesessarenens $ 2902 $ 3,492
Due to Parent and affiliated COMPANIES .........ccveiiiiiiiieice e 92 71
Accrued interest expenses:

Related Party eDt ..o 2 4
Other liabilities:

VSC unearned adminiStrative fEES ........ccviviiiieerc e s 378 364

ACCTUET DENETIT EXPENSES. ...ttt et bbbt 51 49
Support Agreements

HMC and AHFC are parties to a Keep Well Agreement, effective as of September 9, 2005. This Keep Well Agreement provides
that HMC will (1) maintain (directly or indirectly) at least 80% ownership in AHFC’s voting stock and not pledge (directly or
indirectly), or in any way encumber or otherwise dispose of, any such stock of AHFC that it is required to hold (or permit any of
HMC’s subsidiaries to do so), (2) cause AHFC to have a positive consolidated tangible net worth with tangible net worth
defined as (a) stockholder’s equity less (b) any intangible assets, determined on a consolidated basis in accordance with GAAP,
and (3) ensure that AHFC has sufficient liquidity to meet its payment obligations for debt HMC has confirmed in writing is
covered by this Keep Well Agreement, in accordance with its terms, or where necessary make available to AHFC, or HMC shall
procure for AHFC, sufficient funds to enable AHFC to meet such obligations in accordance with such terms. This Keep Well
Agreement is not a guarantee by HMC.
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HMC and HCFI are parties to a Keep Well Agreement effective as of September 26, 2005. This Keep Well Agreement provides
that HMC will (1) maintain (directly or indirectly) at least 80% ownership in HCFI’s voting stock and not pledge (directly or
indirectly), or in any way encumber or otherwise dispose of, any such stock of HCFI that it is required to hold (or permit any of
HMC’s subsidiaries to do so), (2) cause HCFI to have a positive consolidated tangible net worth with tangible net worth defined
as (a) stockholder’s equity less (b) any intangible assets, determined on a consolidated basis in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles in Canada, and (3) ensure that HCFI has sufficient liquidity to meet its payment obligations for
debt HMC has confirmed in writing is covered by this Keep Well Agreement, in accordance with its terms, or where necessary
make available to HCFI, or HMC shall procure for HCFI, sufficient funds to enable HCFI to meet such obligations in
accordance with such terms. This Keep Well Agreement is not a guarantee by HMC.

Debt programs supported by the Keep Well Agreements consist of the Company’s commercial paper programs, Private MTN
Program, Public MTN Program, Euro MTN Programme, and HCFI’s private placement debt. In connection with the above
agreements, AHFC and HCFI have entered into separate Support Compensation Agreements, where each has agreed to pay
HMC a quarterly fee based on the amount of outstanding debt that benefit from the Keep Well Agreements. Support
Compensation Agreement fees are recognized in general and administrative expenses.

Incentive Programs

The Company receives subsidy payments from AHM and HCI, which supplement the revenues on financing products offered
under incentive programs. Subsidy payments received on retail loans and leases are deferred and recognized as revenue over the
term of the related contracts. The unearned balance is recognized as reductions to the carrying value of finance receivables and
investment in operating leases. Subsidy payments on dealer loans are received as earned.

Related Party Debt

AHFC routinely issues short-term notes to AHM to fund AHFC’s general corporate operations. HCFI routinely issues short-
term notes to HCI to fund HCFI’s general corporate operations. Interest rates are based on prevailing rates of debt with
comparable terms. Refer to Note 4 for additional information.

Vehicle Service Contract (VSC) Administration

AHFC receives fees to perform administrative services for vehicle service contracts issued by AHM and its subsidiary. HCFI
receives fees for marketing vehicle service contracts issued by HCI. Unearned VVSC administration fees are included in other
liabilities (Note 11). VSC administration income is recognized in other income (Note 12).

Shared Services

The Company shares certain common expenditures with AHM, HCI, and related parties including data processing services,
software development, and facilities. The allocated costs for shared services are included in general and administrative
expenses.

Benefit Plans

The Company participates in various employee benefit plans that are maintained by AHM and HCI. The allocated benefit plan
expenses are included in general and administrative expenses.

Income taxes

The Company’s U.S. income taxes are recognized on a modified separate return basis pursuant to an intercompany income tax
allocation agreement with AHM. Income tax related items are not included in the tables above. Refer to Note 7 for additional
information.
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Other

The majority of the amounts due from the Parent and affiliated companies at September 30, 2015 and March 31, 2015 related to
subsidies. The majority of the amounts due to the Parent and affiliated companies at September 30, 2015 and March 31, 2015
related to wholesale flooring invoices payable to the Parent. These receivable and payable accounts are non-interest-bearing and
short-term in nature and are expected to be settled in the normal course of business.

Income Taxes

The Company’s effective tax rate was 34.1% and 35.1% for the three months ended September 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively,
and 34.3% and 35.1% for the six months ended September 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

To date, the Company has not provided for federal income taxes on its share of the undistributed earnings of its foreign
subsidiary, HCFI, that are intended to be indefinitely reinvested outside the United States. At September 30, 2015, $673 million
of accumulated undistributed earnings of HCFI were deemed to be so reinvested. If these undistributed earnings as of September
30, 2015 were to be distributed, the tax liability associated with these indefinitely reinvested earnings would be $153 million.
The Company does not expect to repatriate any undistributed earnings in the foreseeable future.

Due to the lapse in U.S. tax law that defers the imposition of U.S. taxes on certain foreign active financing income until that
income is repatriated to the U.S. as a dividend, for the three and six months ended September 30, 2015, AHFC recognized net
tax of $1 million and $3 million, respectively, on its share of such income.

The changes in the unrecognized tax benefits for the six months ended September 30, 2015 were not significant. The Company
does not expect any material changes in the amounts of unrecognized tax benefits during the remainder of the fiscal year ending
March 31, 2016.

As of September 30, 2015, the Company is subject to examination by U.S. federal and state tax jurisdictions for returns filed for
the taxable years ended March 31, 2008 to 2014, with the exception of one state which is subject to examination for returns filed
for the taxable years ended March 31, 2001 to 2014. The Company’s Canadian subsidiary, HCF]I, is subject to examination for
returns filed for the taxable years ended March 31, 2008 to 2015 federally, and returns filed for the taxable years ended March
31, 2007 to 2015 provincially. The Company believes appropriate provision has been made for all outstanding issues for all
open years.

Commitments and Contingencies

The Company leases certain premises and equipment on a long-term basis under noncancelable leases. Some of these leases
require the Company to pay property taxes, insurance, and other expenses. Lease expense was approximately $2 million for both
the three months ended September 30, 2015 and 2014, and approximately $5 million for both the six months ended September
30, 2015 and 2014.

The Company extends commercial revolving lines of credit to dealerships to support their business activities including facilities
refurbishment and general working capital requirements. The amounts borrowed are generally secured by the assets of the
borrowing entity. The majority of the lines have annual renewal periods. Maximum commercial revolving lines of credit were
$466 million and $476 million as of September 30, 2015 and March 31, 2015, respectively, with $264 million and $261 million
used, respectively, as of those dates. The Company also has a commitment to lend a total of $84 million to finance the
construction of auto dealerships, of which $52 million has been funded as of September 30, 2015.

Legal Proceedings and Regulatory Matters

The Company establishes accruals for legal claims when payments associated with the claims become probable and the costs
can be reasonably estimated. When able, the Company will determine estimates of reasonably possible loss or range of loss,
whether in excess of any related accrued liability or where there is no accrued liability. Given the inherent uncertainty associated
with legal matters, the actual costs of resolving legal claims and associated costs of defense may be substantially higher or lower
than the amounts for which accruals have been established.
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The Company is involved, in the ordinary course of business, in various legal proceedings including claims of individual
customers and purported class action lawsuits. Certain of these actions are similar to suits filed against other financial
institutions and captive finance companies. Most of these proceedings concern customer allegations of wrongful repossession or
defamation of credit. The Company is also subject to governmental reviews from time to time. Based on available information
and established accruals, management does not believe it is reasonably possible that the results of these proceedings, in the
aggregate, will have a material adverse effect on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

On July 14, 2015 (Effective Date), the Company reached a settlement with the Consumer Financial Protection Bureau (CFPB)
and the U.S. Department of Justice (DOJ, together with the CFPB, the Agencies) related to the Agencies’ previously disclosed
investigation of, and allegations regarding, pricing practices by dealers originating retail installment sale contracts for
automobiles purchased by AHFC and entered into a consent order with each of the Agencies to reflect such settlement
(collectively, the Consent Orders). Pursuant to the Consent Orders, the Company implemented a new dealer compensation
policy on August 11, 2015. In connection with the implementation of such policy, the Company has agreed to maintain general
compliance management systems reasonably designed to assure compliance with all relevant federal consumer financial laws.
Additionally, the Company has agreed to pay $24 million in consumer remuneration and, pursuant to the Consent Order with the
DOJ, the Company will submit to the DOJ a proposal for the distribution of a $1 million donation by the Company for financial
education programs for protected groups. These amounts were recognized in the consolidated financial statements in the fourth
quarter of fiscal year 2015.

In addition, as previously disclosed, the Company also received a subpoena from the New York Department of Financial
Services requesting information relating to its fair lending laws. The Company is cooperating with this request for information.
Management cannot predict the outcome of this inquiry.

Securitizations and Variable Interest Entities (VIE)

The trusts utilized for on-balance sheet securitizations are VIEs, which are required to be consolidated by their primary
beneficiary. The Company is considered to be the primary beneficiary of these trusts due to (i) the power to direct the activities
of the trusts that most significantly impact the trusts’ economic performance through its role as servicer, and (ii) the obligation
to absorb losses or the right to receive residual returns that could potentially be significant to the trusts through the subordinated
certificates and residual interest retained. The debt securities issued by the trusts to third-party investors along with the assets of
the trusts are included in the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

During the six months ended September 30, 2015 and 2014, the Company issued notes through asset backed securitizations,

which were accounted for as secured financing transactions totaling $2.2 billion and $2.0 billion, respectively. The notes were
secured by receivables with an initial principal balance of $3.0 billion and $2.1 billion, respectively.
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The table below presents the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities of consolidated securitization trusts as they are reported
in the Company’s consolidated balance sheets. All amounts exclude intercompany balances, which have been eliminated upon
consolidation. The assets of the trusts can only be used to settle the obligations of the trusts. The third-party investors in the
obligations of the trusts do not have recourse to the general credit of the Company.

September 30, March 31,
2015 2015

(U.S. dollars in millions)

Assets:
FINANCE TECEIVADIES ... veeivii ittt ettt ettt e bt e et e et e e e ebe e e beeeebeesbeeebeeenres $ 7685 $ 7,444
Unamortized costs and SubSidy INCOME, NEL ........cuiiiiiriiiiiiieiieese s (92) (79)
ANIOWANCE TOF CrEUIT IOSSES .....veveiiiviieeiectereeie ettt eb e (10) (11)
FINanNCe reCeIVADIES, NEL......ccviiicrii ittt ettt e e s be e sabe e sabeesnbeesareesnneeans 7,583 7,354
Vehicles held fOr diSPOSILION. .........coiiiiiiriiiie e 3 3
RESEFCIEA CASN M.ttt ettt ettt ee e st e e e een et neee et eneesenenenes 279 262
ACCUEd INEreSt FECEIVADIE ) ...ttt ettt 8 8
QI IR TSISY=] T $ 7873 $ 7,627
Liabilities:
YY1 0 (=10 [ (=] o SRR $ 7,194 $ 7,375
Unamortized diSCOUNES 8N FEES........cviiiiiiiriiicre s (11) (10)
7= To U (=To [0 (=] o) B < 7,183 7,365
ACCIUE INEIESE EXPENSE ...vveverieteite ettt ettt ettt b e et sr ettt sb et b e et ebesb e e b sb e abenreneas 3 2
TOUAL TTADTITEIES ... cve ettt ettt et et et et et et e e e ereereeeeene et et esaeaneaneneeaneennenseneenneanen $ 7,186 $ 7,367

(1)  Included with other assets in the Company’s consolidated balance sheets (Note 10).

In their role as servicers, AHFC and HCFI collect principal and interest payments on the underlying receivables on behalf of the
securitization trusts. Cash collected during a calendar month is required to be remitted to the trusts in the following month.
AHFC and HCFI are not restricted from using the cash collected for their general purposes prior to the remittance to the trusts.
As of September 30, 2015 and March 31, 2015, AHFC and HCFI had cash collections of $398 million and $420 million,
respectively, which were required to be remitted to the trusts.

(10) Other Assets
Other assets consisted of the following:

September 30, March 31,
2015 2015
(U.S. dollars in millions)
ACCrued INEreSt AN TEES.....c.viueiiiriiiiirte et $ 73 9% 73
OLher FECERIVADIES ...t bbbt be s 103 93
DETEITEA BXPEINSE ... ettt ettt skttt sh e bbbt bt se e b sbeeb e b e e beeseeeb et sbesbesne e 174 169
Software, net of accumulated amortization of $136 and $135
as of September 30, 2015 and March 31, 2015, respectively ........ccccocveveiricniiiicnennnns 22 17
Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation of $17 and $16
as of September 30, 2015 and March 31, 2015, resSpectively ........ccccocvviieiiiiiiicnennns 6 5
RESIFICIEA CASN ... et 303 262
L0 11 ST PP PSPPSR 80 104
TOTAL .. $ 761 % 723

Depreciation and amortization are computed on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of the related assets, which
range from three to five years. General and administrative expenses include depreciation and amortization expense of $1 million
for both the three months ended September 30, 2015 and 2014, and $2 million and $3 million for the six months ended
September 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
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Other Liabilities

Other liabilities consisted of the following:

September 30, March 31,

2015 2015
(U.S. dollars in millions)
DEAIET PAYADIES ... ..eeeeeeieiereieieesist sttt ettt r etttk bbbttt et et b b n e $ 133 $ 127
Accounts payable and aCCrUBA EXPENSES ........cviviruiiiiirieietirt ettt 267 249
LEASE SECUNTLY GEPOSIES ....vevveueatirtesisieseeseeieste st et ese sttt sttt b ettt sb et b e ekt bbbt enenn e 58 55
VSC unearned administrative fees (NOTE 6) ........ooeieiririiiiiiciree s 378 364
Unearned inCOmMe, OPErating [BASE .........cuciiiiiiiiieiiiieisi et 312 303
UNCErtain taX POSITIONS ........viuiieieiiiitiit ettt 18 18
L 11 131 130
B o] | TR PSP URURRUURPRPRPRN $ 1,297 $ 1,246
Other Income
Other income consisted of the following:
Three months ended Six months ended
September 30, September 30,
2015 2014 2015 2014
(U.S. dollars in millions)
VSC administration (NOE 6)..........cceveevereereereeeiireeieereeenereneans $ 24 $ 24 % 49 $ 48
L 131 PSSR - - 1) -
TOtAl ..o $ 24 $ 24 $ 48 $ 48

Fair Value Measurements

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value hierarchy prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used
to measure fair value into three broad levels. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the reporting entity has the ability to access at the measurement date. Level 2 inputs are those other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability. The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
(Level 1) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3). Nonperformance risk is also required to be reflected in the
fair value measurement, including an entity’s own credit standing when measuring the fair value of a liability.
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Recurring Fair Value Measurements

The following tables summarize the fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis:

September 30, 2015

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
(U.S. dollars in millions)
Assets:
Derivative instruments:
INtEreSt rate SWaPS ........cuevererereriririrererisieieierenenenes $ - 3 272 $ - 3 272
CroSS CUMTENCY SWAPS ....veveveieivieiieiereniesrenieanens - 5 - 5
Total @SSELS...c.eiveivcreiievicece e 3 - $ 277  $ - % 277
Liabilities:
Derivative instruments:
INtErest rate SWapS .......ccceevevereeererereererereerereenenenns $ - 153 % - 153
CrOSS CUITENCY SWAPS ©ovvveeiveeireesireesineesineesneesens - 219 - 219
Total liabilities ........ccoveveecccieieriiieccees $ - $ 372§ - 372
March 31, 2015
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
(U.S. dollars in millions)
Assets:
Derivative instruments:
INtErest rate SWaPS .......ccevevereeerereieseereesreresnsnenes $ - 3 236 $ - 3% 236
CrOSS CUITENCY SWAPS .vvvervrierireeririesieesireesseesneas - 1 - 1
TOtal ASSELS...veviiiiiiiirciererercce e $ - 3 237  $ - % 237
Liabilities:
Derivative instruments:
INtErest rate SWapS .......cceoveveveerreeerireeeesieeseneeeas $ - $ 115 ¢ - $ 115
Cr0SS CUITENCY SWAPS ...c.veveeeirisieaieeeeseeresnesnenees - 256 = 256
Total liabilities ........cocoveveiiececcceeee $ - $ 371 $ - 3 371

The valuation techniques of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis are described below:

Derivative Instruments

The Company’s derivatives are transacted in over-the-counter markets and quoted market prices are not readily available. The
Company uses third-party developed valuation models to value derivative instruments. These models estimate fair values using
discounted cash flow modeling techniques, which utilize the contractual terms of the derivative instruments and market-based
inputs, including interest rates and foreign exchange rates. Discount rates incorporate counterparty and HMC specific credit
default spreads to reflect nonperformance risk.

The Company’s derivative instruments are classified as Level 2 since all significant inputs are observable and do not require

management judgment. There were no transfers between fair value hierarchy levels during the six months ended September 30,
2015 and 2014. Refer to Note 5 for additional information on derivative instruments.
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Nonrecurring Fair Value Measurements
The following tables summarize nonrecurring fair value measurements recognized for assets still held at the end of the reporting
periods presented:

Lower-of-cost

or fair value
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total adjustment
(U.S. dollars in millions)
September 30, 2015
Vehicles held for disposition.................... $ - $ - $ 94 $ 94 $ 18
September 30, 2014
Vehicles held for disposition.................... $ - $ - $ 94 $ 94 $ 18

The following describes the methodologies and assumptions used in nonrecurring fair value measurements, which relate to the
application of lower of cost or fair value accounting on long-lived assets.

Vehicles Held for Disposition

Vehicles held for disposition consist of returned and repossessed vehicles. They are valued at the lower of their carrying value
or estimated fair value, less estimated disposition costs. The fair value is based on current average selling prices of like vehicles

at wholesale used vehicle auctions.
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Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The following tables summarize the carrying values and fair values of the Company’s financial instruments except for those
measured at fair value on a recurring basis. Certain financial instruments and all nonfinancial assets and liabilities are excluded
from fair value disclosure requirements including the Company’s direct financing lease receivables and investment in operating

leases.
September 30, 2015
Carrying Fair value
value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
(U.S. dollars in millions)
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents............. $ 714 714 % - $ - 714
Dealer loans, net..........cccceveeveenenn. 4,002 - - 3,840 3,840
Retail loans, net.......cccceevvvvvveeennnnns 31,581 - - 31,823 31,823
Restricted cash ........ccccocvviveeicnennns 303 303 - - 303
Liabilities:
Commercial paper............cccevevene. $ 4,038 - $ 4038 $ - 4,038
Related party debt ...........cccooevnenee. 2,902 - 2,902 - 2,902
Bank 10ans.........ccccoveeeeiiiiiieeiiens 7,285 - 7,263 - 7,263
Medium term note programs......... 21,961 - 22,269 - 22,269
Other debt......c.ccoeevviiiiiiciicees 1,612 - 1,617 - 1,617
Secured debt........ccoeeeveeiiiiiiieene, 7,183 - 7,194 - 7,194
March 31, 2015
Carrying Fair value
value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
(U.S. dollars in millions)
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents............. $ 634 634 $ - $ - 634
Dealer loans, Net..........ccceeeeeeenennne 4,256 - - 4113 4,113
Retail loans, net...........cccceveevveneee. 32,408 - - 32,719 32,719
Restricted cash ........ccccoevveiveeiineenns 262 262 - - 262
Liabilities:
Commercial paper............cccv.ve... $ 4,587 - % 4587 % - 4,587
Related party debt .........ccccuvnen. 3,492 - 3,492 - 3,492
Bank 10ans..........cccovveeviiiiiiecinnnns 7,292 - 7,330 - 7,330
Medium term note programs......... 20,262 - 20,710 - 20,710
Other debt........coceeevviiieeiiiciieeee, 1,691 - 1,715 - 1,715
Secured debt........ccoveeveeiiiiiiieennen, 7,365 - 7,377 - 7,377

The following describes the methodologies and assumptions used to estimate the fair value of the Company’s financial

instruments not measured at fair value on a recurring basis:

Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash

The carrying values reported on the consolidated balance sheets approximate fair values due to the short-term nature of the

assets and negligible credit risk. Restricted cash accounts held by securitization trusts are included in other assets.
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Finance Receivables

The fair values of the Company’s retail loans and dealer wholesale loans are based on estimated proceeds of hypothetical whole
loan transactions. It is assumed that market participants in whole loan transactions would acquire the loans with the intent of
securitizing the loans. Internally developed valuation models are used to estimate the pricing of securitization transactions,
which is adjusted for the estimated costs of securitization transactions and required profit margins of market participants. The
models incorporate projected cash flows of the underlying receivables, which include prepayment and credit loss assumptions.
The models also incorporate current market interest rates and market spreads for the credit and liquidity risk of securities issued
in the securitizations. The estimated fair values of the Company’s dealer commercial loans are based on a discounted cash flow
model.

Debt

The fair value of the Company’s debt is estimated based on a discounted cash flow analysis. Projected cash flows are discounted
using current market interest rates and credit spreads for debt with similar maturities. The Company’s specific nonperformance
risk is reflected in the credit spreads on the Company’s unsecured debt.

The above fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time, based on relevant market information and information about
the financial instrument. These estimates do not reflect any premium or discount that could result from offering for sale at one
time the Company’s entire holdings of a particular financial instrument. Because no active market exists for a portion of the
Company’s financial instruments, fair value estimates of such financial instruments are based on judgments regarding future
expected loss experience, current economic conditions, risk characteristics, and other factors. These estimates are subjective in
nature and involve uncertainties and matters of significant judgment and, therefore, cannot be determined with precision.
Changes in assumptions could significantly affect the estimates.

Fair value information presented in the tables above is based on information available at September 30, 2015 and March 31,
2015. Although the Company is not aware of any factors that would significantly affect the estimated fair value amounts, such
amounts have not been updated since those dates, and therefore, the current estimates of fair value at dates subsequent to those
dates may differ significantly from the amounts presented herein.

Segment Information

The Company’s reportable segments are based on the two geographic regions where operating results are measured and
evaluated by management: the United States and Canada.

Segment performance is evaluated using an internal measurement basis, which differs from the Company’s consolidated results
prepared in accordance with GAAP. Segment performance is evaluated on a pre-tax basis before the effect of valuation
adjustments on derivative instruments and revaluations of foreign currency denominated debt. Since the Company does not elect
to apply hedge accounting, the impact to earnings resulting from these valuation adjustments as reported under GAAP is not
representative of segment performance as evaluated by management. Realized gains and losses on derivative instruments, net of
realized gains and losses on foreign currency denominated debt, are included in the measure of net revenues when evaluating
segment performance.

No adjustments are made to segment performance to allocate any revenues or expenses. Financing products offered throughout

the United States and Canada are substantially similar. Segment revenues from the various financing products are reported on
the same basis as GAAP consolidated results.
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Financial information for the Company’s reportable segments for the three and six months ended or at September 30, 2015 and
2014 is summarized in the following tables:

Three months ended September 30, 2015

Revenues:

Operating leases

TOtal FEVENUES......cooiviieieiieiecceese e
Depreciation on operating 1eases..........ccevvreirerereerieeresrenens
INEEreSt EXPENSE......iiiiiiciiesiiie e
Realized losses on derivatives and foreign

currency denominated debt ..........cccooiiiiiiiinici

NEL TEVENUES ..o
Gain on disposition of lease Vehicles .........cc.ccooovereriiiicienenns
Other INCOME......cviiicieiiiisc e

Total NEt FEVENUES ........overeereiiiiiesie e

Expenses:
General

and administrative EXPeNSEeS .........covrveereeererrenens

Provision for credit l0SSES .........cccovvviviveveioirnieeccienas
Early termination loss on operating 1€ases ..........ccccoceeeeae

Loss on
Gain on
Loss on

lease residual values ............ccocene
derivative instruments ..................
foreign currency revaluation of debt....

Income before iNCOME taXes.........covvvvveeirieiiveeieniineens
Six months ended September 30, 2015

Revenues:

Operating leases

TOtal FEVENUES ......cviieiiieeeee e
Depreciation on operating 1€ases............ccoceveieinieiinenenieneenns
INEEreSt EXPENSE. .....iiiiiiiciiesicee e
Realized losses on derivatives and foreign

currency denominated debt ..........ccoooiiiiiieiiici

NEL FEVENUES ...
Gain on disposition of lease VEhiCles ...........cccoeoeiiniiiiinennns
Other INCOME......ocviiiiiiircrcee s

Total NEt FEVENUES .....cvevvvviiiieiirieiesisieisie e

Expenses:
General

and administrative eXPeNnSES ..........ccoeeeeuerrererieens

Provision for credit 10SSes .........covevrvenieineisccce
Early termination loss on operating 1€ases ..........c..c.ceceeue.

Loss on
Gain on
Loss on

lease residual Values ............cccocvveevveeiieiireeciecnens
derivative instruments
foreign currency revaluation of debt....................

Income before iNCOME taXes.........covvvvvvevieiiveeiiriinnens

September

30, 2015

Total finance receivables.........ccoceveiiieiiiieneieseeese e
Total operating [8aSe aSSELS.........covevirerererierieieieeseee e

Total assets

Valuation
adjustments
United and Consolidated
States Canada reclassifications Total
(U.S. dollars in millions)
- 19 $ - $ 19
265 36 - 301
27 3 - 30
1,236 117 - 1,353
1,528 175 - 1,703
982 95 - 1,077
125 18 - 143
4 7 (12) -
417 55 11 483
6 2 - 8
24 - - 24
447 57 11 515
91 12 - 103
31 4 - 35
17 1 - 18
- 2 - 2
- - (18) (18)
- - 11 11
308 38 $ 18 $ 364
- 43 $ - $ 43
529 73 - 602
53 7 - 60
2,443 218 - 2,661
3,025 341 - 3,366
1,939 178 - 2,117
245 38 - 283
6 14 (20) -
835 111 20 966
27 8 - 30
a7 1 - 48
909 115 20 1,044
178 25 - 203
58 8 - 66
27 2 - 29
- 3 - 3
c c 3) 3)
- - 35 35
646 77 $ (12) $ 711
32,028 4,828 $ = $ 36,856
24,176 2,403 - 26,579
58,162 7,349 - 65,511
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Valuation
adjustments
United and Consolidated
States Canada reclassifications Total
(U.S. dollars in millions)
Three months ended September 30, 2014
Revenues:
Direct financing 1€aSeS .........cccovevieviviieiceecee e $ - 36 3% - 36
RELAI ... 286 43 - 329
DBAIET ...t 25 4 - 29
Operating leases......... 1,139 56 - 1,195
Total revenues 1,450 139 - 1,589
Depreciation on operating leases 897 46 - 943
INEErESt EXPENSE. ....eiiiiiieeiieeet e 122 24 - 146
Realized (gains)/losses on derivatives and foreign
currency denominated debt ..........coeoveineiineiincenseee 1) 6 (5) -
Net reVENUES ......ccocveeevireiiiienieeee 432 63 5 500
Gain on disposition of lease vehicles 9 8 - 12
Other INCOME.....uiiiiiecieceee e re s 24 - 24
Total NEL FEVENUES ......ecveeeeirecieite e sre e sre e 465 66 5 536
Expenses:
General and administrative expenses 85 15 - 100
Provision for credit 10SSes ..........ccooevvricrennn 28 2 - 30
Early termination loss on operating 1€aSses ...........cccoceeeeaen 13 1 - 14
Loss on lease residual values ............cccooervrennenneeinienens - 2 - 2
Loss on derivative inStruments.............ccceveuenne - - 150 150
Gain on foreign currency revaluation of debt.... - - (167) (167)
Income before iNCOME taXes.........coevevervrrierereierenennns $ 339 46 3 22 407
Six months ended September 30, 2014
Revenues:
Direct financing 18aSES ........cccovrveerireiieiereeree e $ - 7% % - 75
RELAI ... s 578 85 - 663
DEAIEI ... .cveciecte et 51 8 - 59
OPErating l8aSES .....cvevverieierieese e sie et 2,244 98 - 2,342
Total revVENUES.......cceeeevveeeiiiieeeien, 2,873 266 - 3,139
Depreciation on operating leases 1,766 80 - 1,846
INEEIESt EXPENSE....c.eiiiiiiiciietcee et 248 48 - 296
Realized (gains)/losses on derivatives and foreign
currency denominated debt (6) 12 (6) -
Net reVENUES .....ccceevvvevieiieeiiieiiene 865 126 6 997
Gain on disposition of lease VEhicles ..........c.cccooveinciinciennnes 33 5 - 38
Other INCOME.....uiiiiiece e 47 1 - 48
Total NEt FEVENUES .......ccvvviiiviiiiiiiee e 945 132 6 1,083
Expenses:
General and administrative XPeNSeS .........ccovvveervereresienens 171 28 - 199
Provision for credit 10SSES ........cccvveveiiivieviecececre e 46 5 - 51
Early termination loss on operating l1€ases ..........c.cc.cceeeene 17 1 - 18
Loss on lease residual values ...........c.ccccvevveveeiencieneereennnns - 2 - 2
Loss on derivative iNStruments.........c.ccooereriereiveesesienienes - - 132 132
Gain on foreign currency revaluation of debt.... - - (179) (179)
Income before INCOME taxes........cevveiveieieeiieiieeiiens $ 711 96 $ 53 860
September 30, 2014
Total finance receivables..........ccccceevvvevieinnnne 34,225 6,472 $ - 40,697
Total operating lease assets . 22,053 1,188 - 23,241
0] LI ETC] £ TR 57,983 7,760 - 65,743
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Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
Overview

Our primary focus, in collaboration with AHM and HCI, is to provide support for the sale of Honda and Acura products and maintain
customer and dealer satisfaction and loyalty. To deliver this support effectively, we seek to maintain competitive cost of funds,
efficient operations, and effective risk and compliance management. The primary factors influencing our results of operations, cash
flows, and financial condition include the volume of Honda and Acura sales and the portion of those sales that we finance, our cost of
funds, competition from other financial institutions, consumer credit defaults, and used motor vehicle prices.

A substantial portion of our consumer financing business is acquired through incentive financing programs sponsored by AHM and
HCI. The volume of incentive financing programs and the allocation of those programs between retail loans and leases may vary from
fiscal period to fiscal period depending upon the respective marketing strategies of AHM and HCI. AHM and HCI’s marketing
strategies are based in part on their business planning, in which we do not participate. Therefore, we cannot predict the level of
incentive financing programs AHM and HCI may sponsor in the future. Our consumer financing acquisition volumes are substantially
dependent on the extent to which incentive financing programs are offered. Increases in incentive financing programs generally
increase our financing penetration rates, which typically results in increased revenue and net income for us. The amount of subsidy
payments we receive from AHM and HCI is dependent on the terms of the incentive financing programs and the interest rate
environment. Subsidy payments are received upon acquisition and recognized in revenue throughout the life of the loan or lease;
therefore, a significant change in the level of incentive financing programs in a fiscal period often may not be reflected in our results
of operations for that period. The amount of subsidy income we recognize in a fiscal period is dependent on the cumulative level of
subsidized contracts outstanding that were acquired through incentive financing programs.

We seek to maintain high quality consumer and dealer account portfolios, which we support with strong underwriting standards, risk-
based pricing, and effective collection capabilities. Our cost of funds is facilitated by the diversity of our funding sources, and
effective interest rate and foreign currency exchange risk management. We manage expenses to increase our profitability, including
adjusting staffing needs based upon our business volumes and centralizing support functions. Additionally, we use risk and
compliance management practices to optimize credit and residual value risks and maintain compliance with our pricing, underwriting
and servicing policies at the United States, Canadian, state and provincial levels.

In our business operations, we incur costs related to funding, credit loss, residual value loss, and general and administrative expenses,
among other expenses.

We analyze our operations in two business segments defined by geography: the United States and Canada. We measure the
performance of our United States and Canada segments on a pre-tax basis before the effect of valuation adjustments on derivative
instruments and revaluations of foreign currency denominated debt. For additional information regarding our segments, see Note 14—
Segment Information of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. The following tables and the related discussion are presented
based on our geographically segmented consolidated financial statements.

References to “C$” are to the Canadian dollar. This report contains translations of certain Canadian dollar amounts into U.S. dollars at
the rate specified below solely for your convenience. These translations should not be construed as representations that the Canadian
dollar amounts actually represent such U.S. dollar amounts or that they could be converted into U.S. dollars at the rate indicated. U.S.
dollar equivalents for “C$” amounts are calculated based on the exchange rate on September 30, 2015 of 1.3313 per U.S. dollar.

References in this report to our “fiscal year 2016 and “fiscal year 2015” refer to our fiscal year ending March 31, 2016 and our fiscal
year ended March 31, 2015, respectively.

Results of Operations

The following table presents our income before income taxes:

Three months ended Six months ended
September 30, September 30,
2015 2014 2015 2014

(U.S. dollars in millions)
Income before income taxes:

United States SEgMENT ....ceviverireeieeeice e, $ 330 % 3%7 % 629 $ 758
Canada SEOMENT......c..eeiiieiiitirieiee et 34 50 82 102
Total income before iNCOME taxes.......ccvevrvreervreeiereeenns $ 364 $ 407 $ 711 $ 860
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Comparison of the Three Months Ended September 30, 2015 and 2014

Our consolidated income before income taxes was $364 million during the second quarter of fiscal year 2016 compared to $407
million during the same period in fiscal year 2015. This decrease of $43 million, or 11%, was primarily due to a loss on revaluation of
foreign currency denominated debt of $11 million during the current period compared to a gain of $167 million during the same

period in fiscal year 2015, a decline in revenues from retail loans of $28 million, a decline in revenues from direct financing leases of
$17 million, and an increase in provision for credit losses of $5 million, which were partially offset by a gain on derivative instruments
of $18 million in the current period compared to a loss of $150 million during the same period in fiscal year 2015, and an increase in
operating lease revenues, net of depreciation, of $24 million.

Comparison of the Six Months Ended September 30, 2015 and 2014

Our consolidated income before income taxes was $711 million during the first six months of fiscal year 2016 compared to $860
million during the same period in fiscal year 2015. This decrease of $149 million, or 17%, was primarily due to a loss on revaluation
of foreign currency denominated debt of $35 million during the first six months of fiscal year 2016 compared to a gain of $179 million
during the same period in fiscal year 2015, a decline in revenues from retail loans of $61 million, a decline in revenues from direct
financing leases of $32 million, an increase in provision of credit losses of $15 million, an increase in early termination loss on
operating leases of $11 million, and a decline in gain on disposition of lease vehicles of $8 million, which were partially offset by a
gain on derivative instruments of $3 million during the first six months of fiscal year 2016 compared to a loss of $132 million during
the same period in fiscal year 2015, an increase in operating lease revenues, net of depreciation, of $48 million, and a decrease in
interest expense of $13 million.

Segment Results—Comparison of the Three Months Ended September 30, 2015 and 2014

Results of operations for the United States segment and the Canada segment are summarized below:

United States Segment Canada Segment Consolidated
Three months ended Three months ended Three months ended
September 30, September 30, September 30,
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
(U.S. dollars in millions)
Revenues:
Direct financing leases........cc.c.ccccoveeenee. $ - 8 - 8 19 $ 36 % 19 $ 36
Retail ..o, 265 286 36 43 301 329
Dealer ....coooovviieiieeeeeeece e 27 25 3 4 30 29
Operating 18ases.........cccvvvveveivereereieeaeenes 1,236 1,139 117 56 1,353 1,195
Total reVenuUeS ........ccceevevvvevcveeennen. 1,528 1,450 175 139 1,703 1,589
Depreciation on operating leases .................. 982 897 95 46 1,077 943
INterest EXPENSE.....ccvvivvi e 125 122 18 24 143 146
NEet reVenues........cccvvvevvieniiniesineenens 421 431 62 69 483 500
Gain on disposition of lease vehicles............ 6 9 2 3 8 12
Other INCOME.......ccovviiiiieciece e 24 24 - - 24 24
Total net revenues ..........cccceeveneee. 451 464 64 72 515 536
Expenses:
General and administrative expenses....... 91 85 12 15 103 100
Provision for credit 10SSes..........c.cccveun.ee. 31 28 4 2 35 30
Early termination loss on operating
[EASES. ...ecvvievecie e 17 13 1 1 18 14
Loss on lease residual values................... - - 2 2 2 2
(Gain)/Loss on derivative instruments..... (29) 148 11 2 (18) 150
(Gain)/Loss on foreign currency
revaluation of debt............ccccoceieniene. 11 (167) - - 11 (167)
Income before income taxes............ $ 330 % 357 % 34 3 5 $ 364 $ 407
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Revenues

Revenue from retail loans in the United States segment declined by $21 million, or 7%, during the second quarter of fiscal year 2016
compared to the same period in fiscal year 2015. The decline in revenue was primarily attributable to lower average outstanding retail
loans. Revenue from retail loans in the Canada segment declined by $7 million, or 16%, primarily due to the effect of foreign currency
translation adjustments.

Operating lease revenue in the United States segment increased by $97 million, or 9%, during the second quarter of fiscal year 2016
compared to the same period in fiscal year 2015. The increase in operating lease revenue was due to higher average outstanding
operating lease assets during the second quarter of fiscal year 2016 compared to the same period in fiscal year 2015. Operating lease
revenue in the Canada segment increased by $61 million due to the increase in operating lease assets.

Direct financing lease revenue, which is generated only in Canada, declined by $17 million, or 47%, during the second quarter of
fiscal year 2016 compared to the same period in fiscal year 2015. The decline in revenue was primarily attributable to the continued
decline in outstanding direct financing lease assets.

Revenue from dealer loans increased by $2 million in the United States segment and declined by $1 million in the Canada segment
during the second quarter of fiscal year 2016 compared to the same period in fiscal year 2015.

Subsidy income from AHM and HCI sponsored incentive programs increased by $5 million, or 2%, to $273 million during the second
quarter of fiscal year 2016 compared to the same period in fiscal year 2015.

Depreciation on operating leases

Depreciation on operating leases in the United States segment increased by $85 million, or 9%, during the second quarter of fiscal
year 2016 compared to the same period in fiscal year 2015, primarily due to higher average outstanding operating lease assets.
Depreciation on operating leases in the Canada segment increased by $49 million due to the increase in operating lease assets.

Operating lease revenue, net of depreciation, in the United States segment increased by $12 million, or 5%, during the second quarter
of fiscal year 2016 compared to the same period in fiscal year 2015. This increase was attributable to the growth in our operating lease
assets, which was partially offset by lower net revenue on more recently acquired operating leases. Operating lease revenue, net of
depreciation, in the Canada segment increased by $12 million due to the increase in operating lease assets.

Interest expense

Interest expense in the United States segment increased by $3 million, or 2%, during the second quarter of fiscal year 2016 compared
to the same period in fiscal year 2015. The increase was attributable to higher average cost of debt due to a change in the mix of short-
term and long-term debt, which was partially offset by lower average outstanding debt. Interest expense in the Canada segment
declined by $6 million, or 25%, due to the effect of foreign currency translation adjustments and lower average cost of debt. See “—
Liquidity and Capital Resources” below for more information.

Gain/loss on disposition of lease vehicles

The gain on disposition of lease vehicles in the United States segment declined by $3 million, or 33%, during the second quarter of
fiscal year 2016 compared to the same period in fiscal year 2015. The decline was the result of lower used vehicle prices and an
increase in the volume of off-lease vehicles sold through auctions during the second quarter of fiscal year 2016 as compared to the
same period in fiscal year 2015. The gain on disposition of lease vehicles in the Canada segment declined by $1 million during the
second quarter of fiscal year 2016 compared to the same period in fiscal year 2015.

Provision for credit losses

The provision for credit losses in the United States segment increased by $3 million, or 11%, during the second quarter of fiscal year
2016 compared to the same period in fiscal year 2015. The increase in our provision reflects higher charge-offs during the second
quarter of fiscal year 2016 compared to the same period in fiscal year 2015. The provision for credit losses in the Canada segment
increased by $2 million during the second quarter of fiscal year 2016 compared to the same period in fiscal year 2015. See “—
Financial Condition—Credit Risk” below for more information.
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Early termination losses on operating leases

Early termination losses on operating leases in the United States segment increased by $4 million, or 31%, during the second quarter
of fiscal year 2016 compared to the same period in fiscal year 2015 primarily due to the growth in operating lease assets. Early
termination losses on operating leases in the Canada segment were consistent during the second quarter of fiscal year 2016 compared
to the same period in fiscal year 2015. See “—Financial Condition—Credit Risk” below for more information.

Loss on lease residual values

Losses on lease residual values in the Canada segment were consistent during the second quarter of fiscal year 2016 compared to the
same period in fiscal year 2015.

Gain/loss on derivative instruments

In the United States segment, we recognized a gain on derivative instruments of $29 million during the second quarter of fiscal year
2016 compared to a loss of $148 million during the same period in fiscal year 2015. The gain in the second quarter of fiscal year 2016
was comprised of gains on pay float interest rate swaps of $124 million and cross currency swaps of $14 million, which were partially
offset by losses on pay fixed interest rate swaps of $109 million. The gains on pay float interest rate swaps and losses on pay fixed
interest rate swaps were primarily due to a decline in interest rates during the second quarter of fiscal year 2016. The gain on cross
currency swaps was primarily attributable to the U.S. dollar weakening against the Euro and Yen during the second quarter of fiscal
year 2016. In the Canada segment, the loss on derivative instruments increased by $9 million during the second quarter of fiscal year
2016 compared to the same period in fiscal year 2015. The loss during the second quarter of fiscal year 2016 was attributable to losses
on interest rate swaps due to the decline in Canadian interest rates. See “—Derivatives” below for more information.

Gain/loss on foreign currency revaluation of debt

In the United States segment, we recognized a loss on the revaluation of foreign currency denominated debt of $11 million during the
second quarter of fiscal year 2016 compared to a gain of $167 million during the same period in fiscal year 2015. The loss during the
second quarter of fiscal year 2016 was attributable to losses on Euro and Yen denominated debt as the U.S. dollar weakened against
both currencies.

Income tax expense

Our consolidated effective tax rate was 34.1% for the second quarter of fiscal year 2016 and 35.1% for the same period in fiscal year
2015.
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Segment Results—Comparison of the Six Months Ended September 30, 2015 and 2014

Results of operations for the United States segment and the Canada segment are summarized below:

United States Segment Canada Segment Consolidated
Six months ended Six months ended Six months ended
September 30, September 30, September 30,
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
(U.S. dollars in millions)
Revenues:
Direct financing leases........c.cc.ccevevevevenee. $ - 8 -8 43 % 75 $ 43 % 75
Retail ....oovvveieiiiie 529 578 73 85 602 663
DEAIEN ....coviviieicie et 53 51 7 8 60 59
Operating 1ases.........ccccvvvrveivereerereearenes 2,443 2,244 218 98 2,661 2,342
Total revenues ........ccoeeeeverereneenne. 3,025 2,873 341 266 3,366 3,139
Depreciation on operating leases .................. 1,939 1,766 178 80 2,117 1,846
INtErest eXPENSE.......coovviriiiriricie e 245 248 38 48 283 296
Net revVeNnUeS .......cccvveeveeiee e, 841 859 125 138 966 997
Gain on disposition of lease vehicles............ 27 33 3 5 30 38
Other INCOME......c.oiveiiieiicisee e 47 47 1 1 48 48
Total net revenues .......c.ccocvveeveenne.. 915 939 129 144 1,044 1,083
Expenses:
General and administrative expenses....... 178 171 25 28 203 199
Provision for credit [0SS€S.........c.ccccvreennens 58 46 8 5 66 51
Early termination loss on operating
LASES .ottt 27 17 2 1 29 18
Loss on lease residual values................... - - 3 2 3 2
(Gain)/Loss on derivative instruments..... (12) 126 9 6 3) 132
(Gain)/Loss on foreign currency
revaluation of debt............ccococevvinnne. 35 (179) = = 35 (179)
Income before income taxes............ $ 629 $ 758 $ 82 % 102  $ 711§ 860
Revenues

Revenue from retail loans in the United States segment declined by $49 million, or 8%, during the first six months of fiscal year 2016
compared to the same period in fiscal year 2015. The decline in revenue was primarily attributable to lower average outstanding retail
loans. Revenue from retail loans in the Canada segment declined by $12 million, or 14%, primarily due to the effect of foreign
currency translation adjustments.

Operating lease revenue in the United States segment increased by $199 million, or 9%, during the first six months of fiscal year 2016
compared to the same period in fiscal year 2015. The increase in operating lease revenue was due to higher average outstanding
operating lease assets during the first six months of fiscal year 2016 compared to the same period in fiscal year 2015. Operating lease
revenue in the Canada segment increased by $120 million due to the increase in operating lease assets.

Direct financing lease revenue, which is generated only in Canada, declined by $32 million, or 43%, during the first six months of
fiscal year 2016 compared to the same period in fiscal year 2015. The decline in revenue was primarily attributable to the continued
decline in outstanding direct financing lease assets.

Revenue from dealer loans increased by $2 million in the United States and declined by $1 million in the Canada segment during the
first six months of fiscal year 2016 compared to the same period in fiscal year 2015.

Subsidy income from AHM and HCI sponsored incentive programs increased by $9 million, or 2%, to $544 million during the first six
months of fiscal year 2016 compared to the same period in fiscal year 2015.

Depreciation on operating leases

Depreciation on operating leases in the United States segment increased by $173 million, or 10%, during the first six months of fiscal
year 2016 compared to the same period in fiscal year 2015, primarily due to higher average outstanding operating lease assets.
Depreciation on operating leases in the Canada segment increased by $98 million due to the increase in operating lease assets.
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Operating lease revenue, net of depreciation, in the United States segment increased by $26 million, or 5%, during the first six months
of fiscal year 2016 compared to the same period in fiscal year 2015. This increase was attributable to the growth in our operating lease
assets, which was partially offset by lower net revenue on more recently acquired operating leases. Operating lease revenue, net of
depreciation, in the Canada segment increased by $22 million due to the increase in operating lease assets.

Interest expense

In the United States segment, interest expense declined by $3 million, or 1%, during the first six months of fiscal year 2016 compared
to the same period in fiscal year 2015. The decline in interest expense was primarily attributable to a decline in average outstanding
debt, which was partially offset by higher average cost of debt due to a change in the mix of short-term and long-term debt. In the
Canada segment, interest expense declined by $10 million, or 21%, due to the effect of foreign currency translation adjustments and
lower average cost of debt. See “—Liquidity and Capital Resources” below for more information.

Gain/loss on disposition of lease vehicles

The gain on disposition of lease vehicles in the United States segment declined by $6 million, or 18%, during the first six months of
fiscal year 2016 compared to the same period in fiscal year 2015. The decline was the result of lower used vehicle prices and an
increase in the volume of off-lease vehicles sold through auctions during the first six months of fiscal year 2016 as compared to the
same period in fiscal year 2015. The gain on disposition of lease vehicles in the Canada segment declined by $2 million during the
first six months of fiscal year 2016 compared to the same period in fiscal year 2015.

Provision for credit losses

The provision for credit losses in the United States segment increased by $12 million, or 26%, during the first six months of fiscal year
2016 compared to the same period in fiscal year 2015. The increase in our provision reflects higher loss estimates in our allowance for
credit losses as a result of slightly higher loss rates experienced on recent vintages and reduced used vehicle price estimates. The
provision for credit losses in the Canada segment increased by $3 million during the first six months of fiscal year 2016 compared to
the same period in fiscal year 2015 primarily due to higher charge-offs. See “—Financial Condition—Credit Risk” below for more
information.

Early termination losses on operating leases

Early termination losses on operating leases in the United States segment increased by $10 million, or 59%, during the first six months
of fiscal year 2016 compared to the same period in fiscal year 2015 primarily due to the growth in operating lease assets. Early
termination losses on operating leases in the Canada segment increased by $1 million during the first six months of fiscal year 2016
compared to the same period in fiscal year 2015.

Loss on lease residual values

Losses on lease residual values in the Canada segment increased by $1 million for the first six months of fiscal year 2016 as compared
to the same period in fiscal year 2015.

Gain/loss on derivative instruments

In the United States segment, we recognized a gain on derivative instruments of $12 million during the first six months of fiscal year
2016 compared to a loss of $126 million during the same period in fiscal year 2015. The gain in the first six months of fiscal year
2016 was comprised of gains on pay float interest rate swaps of $115 million and cross currency swaps of $31 million, which were
partially offset by losses on pay fixed interest rate swaps of $134 million. The gains on pay float interest rate swaps and losses on pay
fixed interest rate swaps were primarily due to a decline in interest rates during the first six months of fiscal year 2016. The gain on
Ccross currency swaps was primarily attributable to the U.S. dollar weakening against the Euro during the first six months of fiscal year
2016. In the Canada segment, the loss on derivative instruments increased by $3 million during the first six months of fiscal year 2016
compared to the same period in fiscal year 2015. The loss during the first six months of fiscal year 2016 was attributable to losses on
interest rate swaps due to the decline in Canadian interest rates. See “—Derivatives” below for more information.

Gain/loss on foreign currency revaluation of debt

In the United States segment, we recognized a loss on the revaluation of foreign currency denominated debt of $35 million during the
first six months of fiscal year 2016 compared to a gain of $179 million during the same period in fiscal year 2015. The loss during the
first six months of fiscal year 2016 was attributable to losses on Euro denominated debt as the U.S. dollar weakened against the Euro.
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Income tax expense

Our consolidated effective tax rate was 34.3% for the first six months of fiscal year 2016 and 35.1% for the same period in fiscal year
2015.

Financial Condition

Consumer Financing

Consumer Financing Acquisition Volumes

The following table summarizes the number of retail loans and leases we acquired and the number of such loans and leases acquired
through incentive financing programs sponsored by AHM and HCI:

Three months ended September 30, Six months ended September 30,
2015 2014 2015 2014

Acquired  Sponsored ®  Acquired  Sponsored ®  Acquired  Sponsored ®  Acquired  Sponsored @
(Units ™ in thousands)

United States Segment

Retail loans:

New auto...........cc.e.... 124 89 130 82 232 159 275 179
Used auto.................. 19 3 14 2 36 3 30 2
Motorcycle................ 19 3 18 3 40 6 39 7

Power equipment and
marine engines..... - - 1 - 1 - 1 -

Total retail

loans............. 162 95 163 87 309 168 345 188
Leases® ..o, 131 111 129 122 262 223 257 245

Canada Segment

Retail loans:
New auto................... 16 15 15 10 30 27 30 21
Used auto.................. 4 2 4 1 8 4 8 3
Motorcycle................ 2 1 2 1 4 2 4 2
Power equipment and
marine engines..... - - - - - - - -
Total retail
loans ............ 22 18 21 12 42 33 42 26
Leases™ ..o 23 23 18 16 46 45 38 35
Consolidated
Retail loans:
New auto................... 140 104 145 92 262 186 305 200
Used auto.................. 23 5 18 3 44 7 38 5
Motorcycle................ 21 4 20 4 44 8 43 9
Power equipment and
marine engines..... - - 1 - 1 - 1 -
Total retail
loans............ 184 113 184 99 351 201 387 214
Leases® ..o, 154 134 147 138 308 268 295 280

(1)  Aunitrepresents one retail loan or lease, as noted, that was originated in the United States and acquired by AHFC or its subsidiaries, or that
was originated in Canada and acquired by HCFI, in each case during the period shown.

(2)  Represents the number of retail loans and leases acquired through incentive financing programs sponsored by AHM and/or HCI and only those
contracts with subsidy payments. Excludes contracts where contractual rates met or exceeded our yield requirements and subsidy payments
were not required.

(3) Includes operating leases for both segments and direct financing leases for the Canada segment.
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Consumer Financing Penetration Rates

The following table summarizes the percentage of AHM and/or HCI sales of new automobiles and motorcycles that were financed
either with retail loans or leases that we acquired:

United States Segment

New auto...
Motorcycle

Canada Segment

New auto...
Motorcycle

Consolidated
New auto...
Motorcycle

34

Three months ended

Six months ended

September 30, September 30,
2015 2014 2015 2014
59% 61% 58% 64%
40% 39% 39% 38%
5% 69% 73% 70%
28% 29% 28% 27%
60% 62% 59% 64%
39% 38% 37% 37%



Consumer Financing Asset Balances

The following table summarizes our outstanding retail loan and lease asset balances and units:

September 30, March 31, September 30, March 31,
2015 2015 2015 2015
(U.S. dollars in millions) (Units @ in thousands)
United States Segment
Retail loans:
NEW AUED.....ecuveviieireeteereeeeie e stesresreeree e estesresreebesnsennesnenas $ 24,716 3 25,596 1,749 1,788
USEA QULD ...ttt 2,773 2,782 224 233
MOTOTCYCIE ..ottt 923 887 187 184
Power equipment and maring engines ...........ccccoceevevrenne, 53 55 5 5
Total retail 10anS........ccocvieiiiiecicce e, $ 28,465 3 29,320 2,165 2,210
Securitized retail 10aNS @...........ccoo.covvviiriieeiinriineis $ 7,216 $ 7,290 644 671
Investment in operating 1eases ........cccceveveveseiieseeieriesie e $ 24,176 3% 22,790 1,145 1,086
Canada Segment
Retail loans:
INEW QULO ...ttt st st sae e snenea $ 259 % 2,531 188 187
USEA QULD ..ttt 444 488 56 60
Y 0] (0] {0y [ 74 65 15 13
Power equipment and marine engines ..........cccocevcververnenne. 4 4 2 2
Total retail 10aNS.......cocvvvviiiiiececee e $ 3,116 $ 3,088 261 262
Securitized retail 10anS @ ...........coccooveveeiieeeeeeeeeeeen, $ 367 $ 64 24 14
Direct finanCing 1€aSES .......c.cciueieeieeieiie e $ 1273  $ 1,800 91 116
Investment in operating 1€ases .........cccvvvevvevvere e, $ 2,403 % 1,649 118 75
Consolidated
Retail loans:
INEW QULO ...ttt st sbe e sbesnenen $ 27,310 $ 28,127 1,937 1,975
USEA QUED ...ttt 3,217 3,270 280 293
Y 0] (0] {0y [ 997 952 202 197
Power equipment and marine engings ..........cccccevveveernenne. 57 59 7 7
Total retail 10aNnS.......cccooiieiiiiiie e $ 31,581 3% 32,408 2,426 2,472
Securitized retail 10aNS @ .........ooveeoeeeeeeeeee e, $ 7583 % 7,354 668 685
Direct finanCing 1€8SES .......civvvvieiieiiieie e $ 1,273  $ 1,800 91 116
Investment in operating 1€ases .........occovvvveieieicieieneeiees $ 26,579 % 24,439 1,263 1,161

(1)  Aunit represents one retail loan or lease, as noted, that was outstanding as of the date shown.
(2)  Securitized retail loans represent the portion of total retail loans that have been sold in securitization transactions but continue to be recognized
on our balance sheet. Securitized retail loans are included in the amounts for total retail loans.

In the United States segment, total consumer financing acquisition volumes declined during the first six months of fiscal year 2016
compared to the same period in fiscal year 2015 due to lower incentive financing volumes during the first six months of fiscal year
2016 compared to the same period in fiscal year 2015, which also negatively affected our financing penetration rates. Throughout
fiscal year 2015 and the first six months of fiscal year 2016, AHM focused their support more toward lease incentive programs over
retail loan incentive programs resulting in growth in our operating lease assets and a decline in retail loans during this period. During
the first six months of fiscal year 2016, outstanding operating lease assets increased by $1.4 billion and total outstanding retail loans
declined by $855 million.

In the Canada segment, incentive financing volumes, total consumer financing acquisition volumes, and financing penetration rates
increased during the first six months of fiscal year 2016 compared to the same period in fiscal year 2015. HCI also continued to focus
their support more toward lease incentive programs over retail loan incentive programs during the first six months of fiscal year 2016.
Outstanding direct financing lease assets continued to decline and operating lease assets continued to increase during the first six
months of fiscal year 2016 as the result of our remaining direct financing leases maturing and all newly acquired leases being
classified as operating leases.
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Dealer Financing

Wholesale Flooring Financing Penetration Rates

The following table summarizes the number of dealerships with wholesale flooring financing agreements as a percentage of total
authorized Honda and Acura dealerships in the United States and/or Canada, as applicable:

September 30, March 31,

2015 2015

United States Segment

AULOMODITE 1.t b ettt et bbb e et 28% 28%

0] (o] 03 [ 96% 97%

Power equipment and Maring ENQINES .......c.civeiveieieieiieeeeee s ese e se e e e e sae e re e re e e e e e saesaesrennes 22% 23%
Canada Segment

AULOMODITE 1. ettt b ettt ettt nbe e 35% 35%

0] (0] (03 [ 99% 98%

Power equipment and Maring ENQINES ........ccveiueeierieieesieeseesteeae e s e steesreesteesressaesreesreesreeseeeseanens 97% 97%
Consolidated

U 10 110 o 1 =PSRRI 29% 30%

010 13 od [ PP SO PP PP PP PTPPRPRTPRPON 97% 97%

Power equipment and MAring ENGINES .........coviiriiiireieiree bbb 25% 26%

Wholesale Flooring Financing Percentage of Sales

The following table summarizes the percentage of AHM product sales in the United States and/or HCI product sales in Canada, as
applicable, that we financed through wholesale flooring loans with dealerships:

Three months ended Six months ended
September 30, September 30,
2015 2014 2015 2014

United States Segment

AULOMODIIE ... 28% 28% 27% 29%

Y 0] (0] (03 [ PSR 97% 97% 97% 97%

Power equipment and marine engines .........cccceevvevvereeriesivesinennnn, 9% 10% 8% 9%
Canada Segment

AULOMODIIE ... 34% 34% 34% 32%

Y 0] (0] (03 [ PSSR 96% 98% 96% 95%

Power equipment and marine engines .........cccceevvevvereeriesivesinenenn, 97% 96% 97% 96%
Consolidated

AULOMODIIE ..o 28% 29% 28% 29%

MOTOTCYCIE ...t 97% 97% 97% 96%

Power equipment and maring engines .........cccecveerervrenenesienieneans 11% 12% 10% 11%

36



Dealer Financing Asset Balances

The following table summarizes our outstanding dealer financing asset balances and units:

September 30, March 31, September 30, March 31,
2015 2015 2015 2015
(U.S. dollars in millions) (Units @ in thousands)
United States Segment
Wholesale flooring loans:
AULOMODIIE ... $ 2,156 $ 2,255 85 90
MOTOTCYCIE ...t 600 683 93 103
Power equipment and maring engines ...........cccvereireneernenns 52 62 47 66
Total wholesale flooring 10ans ..........c.ccococeeerieicnnceenn. $ 2,808 $ 3,000 225 259
ComMErCIal [0ANS ......cviviiieicice e $ 754 % 748
Canada Segment
Wholesale flooring loans:
AULOMODIIE ..o $ 305 $ 354 14 15
MOTOTCYCIE ... 60 75 9 11
Power equipment and maring engines ...........ccccverevrenneereenns 17 29 16 28
Total wholesale flooring 10ans ..........cccoovvvvrcccnnnns $ 382 % 458 39 54
ComMErCIal 10ANS .......vcveveeeiereriiiieiese e $ 58 $ 50
Consolidated
Wholesale flooring loans:
AULOMODIIE ... $ 2,461 $ 2,609 99 105
MOTOICYCIE. ... 660 758 102 114
Power equipment and maring engings ..........ccceceevvereeseeseeenne 69 91 63 94
Total wholesale flooring l0ans ............cccceeevvievievieeieenen. $ 3,190 $ 3,458 264 313
CommErcial 108NS .........ceviiviiiiieieccee e $ 812 $ 798

(1)  Aunit represents one automobile, motorcycle, power equipment, or marine engine, as applicable, financed through a wholesale flooring loan
that was outstanding as of the date shown.

Credit Risk

Credit losses are an expected cost of extending credit. The majority of our credit risk is in consumer financing and to a lesser extent in
dealer financing. Credit risk of our portfolio of consumer finance receivables can be affected by general economic conditions. Adverse
changes such as a rise in unemployment rates can increase the likelihood of defaults. Declines in used vehicle prices can reduce the
amount of recoveries on repossessed collateral. We manage our exposure to credit risk in retail loans and direct financing leases by
monitoring and adjusting our underwriting standards, which affect the level of credit risk that we assume, pricing contracts for
expected losses, and focusing collection efforts to minimize losses.

We are also exposed to credit risk on our portfolio of operating lease assets. We expect a portion of our operating leases to terminate
prior to their scheduled maturities when lessees default on their contractual obligations. Losses are generally realized upon the
disposition of the repossessed operating lease vehicles. The factors affecting credit risk on our operating leases and our management
of the risk are similar to that of our retail loans and direct financing leases.

Credit risk on dealer loans is affected primarily by the financial strength of the dealers within the portfolio, the value of collateral
securing the financings, and economic and market factors that could affect the creditworthiness of dealers. We manage our exposure
to credit risk in dealer financing by performing comprehensive reviews of dealers prior to establishing financing arrangements and
monitoring the payment performance and creditworthiness of these dealers on an ongoing basis. In the event of default by a dealer, we
seek all available legal remedies pursuant to related dealer agreements, guarantees, security interests on collateral, or liens on
dealership assets. Additionally, we have entered into agreements with AHM and HCI that provide for the repurchase of any new,
unused, undamaged and unregistered vehicle or equipment repossessed by us from a dealer in the United States and Canada,
respectively, who defaulted under the terms of its wholesale flooring agreement with us at the net cost of the financing that we
provided.
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An allowance for credit losses is maintained for management’s estimate of probable losses incurred on finance receivables. We also

maintain an estimate for early termination losses on operating lease assets due to lessee defaults and an allowance for credit losses on
past due operating lease rental payments.

Additional information regarding credit losses is provided in the discussion of “—Critical Accounting Policies—Credit Losses”
below.
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The following table provides information with respect to our allowance for credit losses and credit loss experience of our finance
receivables and losses related to lessee defaults on our operating leases:

As of or for the As of or for the
three months ended six months ended
September 30, September 30,
2015 2014 2015 2014

(U.S. dollars in millions)
United States Segment
Finance receivables:

Allowance for credit losses at beginning of period....................... $ 8 % 87 $ 7%
Provision for Credit 10SSeS.........oovvvvieiirieiiee e 26 23 49
Charge-0offs, net 0f reCOVENIES. .......cvcvviveieiiie e (28) (27) (43)
Allowance for credit losses at end of period............ccccccvvvevennee. $ 83 % 83 % 83 3
Allowance as a percentage of ending receivable balance ™ ......... 0.26% 0.24%
Charge-offs as a percentage of average receivable balance @ .. 0.34% 0.31% 0.26% 0.24%
Delinquencies (60 or more days past due):
Delinquent amount @ ...........c..coooovveeveeeeeeeeeee e, $ 61 $
As a percentage of ending receivable balance® @................. 0.19% 0.15%

Operating leases:
Early termination loss on operating 1€ases.........c.ccceevererereriririenes $ 17 3 13 3 27 $
Provision for past due operating lease rental payments® ............ 5 5 9

Canada Segment
Finance receivables:

Allowance for credit losses at beginning of period............c.cc.c.... $ 9 $ 12 3 9 $
Provision for Credit 10SSeS.........ovvvvvieiirieiiee e 4 2 8
Charge-offs, net of reCOVEIIES........coiveriiiiie e 3) 3) (7)
Effect of translation adjustment...........cccccevieevie e, - - -
Allowance for credit losses at end of period..........c.ccccoeeevvrvrinnnne. $ 10 % 11 3 10 $
Allowance as a percentage of ending receivable balance ™ ......... 0.18% 0.16%
Charge-offs as a percentage of average receivable balance @ @ 0.23% 0.17% 0.27% 0.17%
Delinquencies (60 or more days past due):
Delinquent amount @ ...........c..ccccoovivieiereeieeeeeeeeee e, $ 8 $
As a percentage of ending receivable balance ™ @ ............... 0.15% 0.10%

Operating leases:
Early termination loss on operating 1€ases...........ccccoceevrvrirencrinen. $ 1 9 1 8 2 3
Provision for past due operating lease rental payments® ............ - - -

Consolidated
Finance receivables:
Allowance for credit losses at beginning of period....................... $ 94 3 9 3 86 $ 100
Provision for Credit 10SSES......cvovvvrvreivrireiee e 30 25 57
Charge-offs, net Of reCOVENIES. .......oviviieiiieii e (31) (30) (50)
Effect of translation adjustment.............cccoeoeiiiiniiiiiiieeee - - -
Allowance for credit losses at end of period............cccoceevervrinnnae. $ 93 % 94 $ 93 $
Allowance as a percentage of ending receivable balance ™ ......... 0.25% 0.23%
Charge-offs as a percentage of average receivable balance @ .. 0.32% 0.28% 0.26% 0.23%
Delinquencies (60 or more days past due):
Delinquent amount @ ..............ccccovvivieiiereeeeeeee e, $ 69 60
As a percentage of ending receivable balance ™ @................. 0.18% 0.14%
Operating leases:
Early termination loss on operating 1€ases..........cccooecvvervirennne, 18 $ 14 % 29 18
Provision for past due operating lease rental payments® ............ 5 5 9 9
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(1) Ending and average receivable balances exclude the allowance for credit losses, write-down of lease residual values, unearned subvention
income related to our incentive financing programs and deferred origination costs. Average receivable balances are calculated based on the
average of each month’s ending receivables balance for that fiscal year.

(2)  For the purposes of determining whether a contract is delinquent, payment is generally considered to have been made, in the case of (i) dealer
finance receivables, upon receipt of 100% of the payment when due and (ii) consumer finance receivables, upon receipt of 90% of the sum of
the current monthly payment plus any overdue monthly payments. Delinquent amounts presented are the aggregated principal balances of
delinquent finance receivables.

(3)  Provisions for past due operating lease rental payments are also included in total provision for credit losses in our consolidated statements of
income.

(4)  Percentages for the three and six months ended September 30, 2015 and 2014 have been annualized.

In the United States segment, the provision for credit losses on our finance receivables was $49 million during the first six months of
fiscal year 2016 compared to $37 million during the same period in fiscal year 2015. The increase in our provision reflects higher loss
estimates in our allowance for credit losses as a result of slightly higher loss rates experienced on recent vintages and reduced used
vehicle price estimates. We recognized early termination losses on operating lease assets of $27 million during the first six months of
fiscal year 2016 compared to $17 million during the same period in fiscal year 2015. The increase was primarily due to the growth in
operating lease assets.

In the Canada segment, the provision for credit losses on our finance receivables increased by $3 million during the first six months of
fiscal year 2016 compared to the same period in fiscal year 2015 primarily due to higher charge-offs. Early termination losses on
operating lease assets increased by $1 million during the first six months of fiscal year 2016 compared to the same period in fiscal
year 2015 due to the increase in outstanding operating lease assets.

Lease Residual Value Risk

Contractual residual values of lease vehicles are determined at lease inception based on expectations of future used vehicle values,
taking into consideration external industry data and our own historical experience. Lease customers have the option at the end of the
lease term to return the vehicle to the dealer or to buy the vehicle at the contractual residual value (or if purchased prior to lease
maturity, for the outstanding contractual balance). Returned lease vehicles can be purchased by the grounding dealer at the contractual
residual value (or if purchased prior to lease maturity, for the outstanding contractual balance) or for a market based price. Returned
lease vehicles that are not purchased by the grounding dealers are sold through online and physical auctions. We are exposed to risk of
loss on the disposition of returned lease vehicles when the proceeds from the sale of the vehicles are less than the contractual residual
values at the end of the lease term.

We assess our estimates for end of lease term market values of leased vehicles, at minimum, on a quarterly basis. The primary factors
affecting the estimates are the percentage of leased vehicles that we expect to be returned by the lessee at the end of lease term and the
expected loss severity. Factors considered in this evaluation include, among other factors, economic conditions, historical trends, and
market information on new and used vehicles. For operating leases, adjustments to estimated residual values are made on a straight
line basis over the remaining term of the lease and are included as depreciation expense. For direct financing leases, downward
adjustments for declines in estimated residual values deemed to be other-than-temporary are recognized as a loss on lease residual
values in the period in which the estimate changed. Additional information regarding lease residual values is provided in the
discussion of “—Critical Accounting Policies—Determination of Lease Residual Values” below.

We also review our investment in operating leases for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying values may not be recoverable. If impairment conditions are met, impairment losses are measured by the amount carrying
values exceed their fair values. There were no events or circumstances that indicated that the carrying values of our operating leases
would not be recoverable during the first six months of fiscal year 2016 and 2015.
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The following table summarizes our number of lease terminations and the method of disposition:

Three months ended Six months ended
September 30, September 30,
2015 2014 2015 2014

(Units @ in thousands)
United States Segment
Termination units:

Sales at outstanding contractual balances @ ..............cccocovvvivinnnn. 64 63 141 136
Sales through auctions and dealer direct programs @ ..................... 30 19 57 38
Total termination UNILS .......ccccovieriiieneieese e, 94 82 198 174

Canada Segment
Termination units:

Sales at outstanding contractual balances @ .............cc.cccccoevveenan., 11 10 24 22
Sales through auctions and dealer direct programs @ ................... 1 1 3 3
Total termination UNILS ........cccieiiiiie i 12 11 27 25

Consolidated
Termination units:

Sales at outstanding contractual balances @ .............ccccoovervrnnene.. 75 73 165 158
Sales through auctions and dealer direct programs @ .................... 31 20 60 41
Total termination UNITS ........cccocvveriininiineeee e, 106 93 225 199

(1)  Aunit represents one terminated lease by their method of disposition during the period shown. Unit counts do not include leases that were
terminated due to lessee defaults.

(2)  Includes vehicles purchased by lessees or dealers for the contractual residual value at lease maturity or the outstanding contractual balance if
purchased prior to lease maturity.

(3) Includes vehicles sold through online auctions and market based pricing options under our dealer direct programs or through physical auctions.
We previously included all vehicles sold through our dealer direct programs in this category including vehicles that the grounding dealer
exercised their option to purchase at contractual residual values. Since December 31, 2014, we have included these units in the “Sales at
outstanding contractual balances” category and have reclassified comparative periods to reflect this change.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our liquidity strategy is to fund current and future obligations through our cash flows from operations and our diversified funding
programs in a cost and risk effective manner. Our cash flows are generally impacted by cash requirements related to the volume of
finance receivable and operating lease acquisitions and various operating and funding costs incurred, which are largely funded through
payments received on our assets and our funding strategies outlined below. As noted, the levels of incentive financing sponsored by
AHM and HCI can impact our financial results and liquidity from period to period. Increases or decreases in incentive financing
programs typically increase or decrease our financing penetration rates, respectively, which result in increased or decreased
acquisition volumes and increased or decreased liquidity needs, respectively. At acquisition, we receive the subsidy payments, which
reduce the cost of consumer loan and lease contracts acquired, and we recognize such payments as revenue over the term of the loan
or lease.

In an effort to minimize liquidity risk and interest rate risk and the resulting negative effects on our margins, results of operations and
cash flows, our funding strategy incorporates investor diversification and the utilization of multiple funding sources including
commercial paper, medium term notes, bank loans, related party debt and asset-backed securities. We incorporate a funding strategy
that takes into consideration factors such as the interest rate environment, domestic and foreign capital market conditions, maturity
profiles, and economic conditions. We believe that our funding sources, combined with cash provided by operating and investing
activities, will provide sufficient liquidity for us to meet our debt service and working capital requirements over the next twelve
months.
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Summary of Outstanding Debt

The table below presents a summary of our outstanding debt by various funding sources:

United States Segment
Unsecured debt:
Commercial PAPEL.......coviieiirieiiirieee s
Related party debt..........ccoeieiiiiniii e
Bank 10aNS ......oviiiiiiiiecce e
Private MTN Program ........ccccoceoeeieneieneneieseneese e
PUBIIC MTN Program.......ccoccoeiereeienieesenieesre e seeesneneas
Euro MTN Programme .........cccecverinennnenenieeee e
Total unsecured debt...........ccovveieieiineieiereese e
Secured debt.. ...
LI L U (=] ] USSR

Canada Segment
Unsecured debt:
Commercial PAPET........cueiveiieie e
Related party debt.........ccoiiiiiiiiiie
BanK I0aNS ......ocvviiiiiiiie et
Other debt......cveeiiiiiceec e
Total unsecured debt.........c.ccooeeiviiiiiiiiice e,
T Tol N[ =To [0 =1 o] S
Total dEDL.......vieieeiciiccee e

Consolidated
Unsecured debt:
Commercial PAPET.......ccueiveiieiiese e
Related party debt........cccooveiieiii e
Bank 10ans ........ooiiiiiiii
Private MTN Program ........ccccoceveeieiiieiieiieseese e esie e
PUblic MTN Program.......c.ccccciieeveeieiiieiieaieseesieesieesiesaesnnens
Euro MTN programme .........cccccovevereiiieeieeneecece e
Other debt......ec e
Total unsecured debt.........cccoevereiiviiviiiieee e
SeCUred AEDE.......eiiiicicce e
Total debt.......ccooeiiiiic e

Commercial Paper

Weighted average

contractual interest rate

September 30, March 31, September 30, March 31,
2015 2015 2015 2015
(U.S. dollars in millions)
$ 2,918 $ 3,503 0.23% 0.19%
1,400 1,915 0.18% 0.17%
6,292 6,290 0.78% 0.73%
5,441 7,458 2.73% 2.45%
14,716 10,938 1.23% 1.09%
1,804 1,866 1.36% 1.30%
32,571 31,970
6,826 7,315 0.89% 0.73%
$ 39,397 $ 39,285
$ 1,120 $ 1,084 0.70% 0.96%
1,502 1,577 0.78% 1.14%
993 1,002 1.29% 1.54%
1,612 1,691 1.73% 1.85%
5,227 5,354
357 50 1.06% 1.30%
$ 5584 $ 5,404
$ 4,038 3 4,587 0.36% 0.37%
2,902 3,492 0.49% 0.61%
7,285 7,292 0.85% 0.84%
5,441 7,458 2.73% 2.45%
14,716 10,938 1.23% 1.09%
1,804 1,866 1.36% 1.30%
1,612 1,691 1.73% 1.85%
37,798 37,324
7,183 7,365 0.90% 0.74%
$ 44981 $ 44,689

As of September 30, 2015, we had commercial paper programs in the United States of $7.0 billion and in Canada of C$2.0 billion
(U.S. $1.5 billion). Interest rates on the commercial paper are fixed at the time of issuance. During the six months ended September
30, 2015, consolidated commercial paper month-end outstanding principal balances ranged from approximately $4.0 billion to $5.9

billion and the outstanding daily balance averaged $5.2 billion.
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Related Party Debt

AHFC routinely issues fixed rate notes to AHM to help fund AHFC’s general corporate operations. HCFI routinely issues fixed rate
notes to HCI to help fund HCFI’s general corporate operations. Interest rates are based on prevailing rates of debt with comparable
terms. Generally, the term of these notes is less than 120 days. During the six months ended September 30, 2015, the consolidated
related party debt month-end principal balances ranged from approximately $2.9 billion to $3.1 billion and the outstanding daily
balance averaged $3.0 billion.

Bank Loans

During the six months ended September 30, 2015, AHFC did not enter into any new bank loan agreements and HCFI entered into
three floating rate term loan agreements for C$100 million (U.S. $75 million), C$50 million (U.S. $38 million) and C$100 million
(U.S. $75 million). As of September 30, 2015, we had bank loans denominated in U.S. dollars and Canadian dollars with floating
interest rates, in principal amounts ranging from approximately $38 million to $600 million. As of September 30, 2015, the remaining
maturities of all bank loans outstanding ranged from 79 days to approximately 6.0 years. The weighted average remaining maturities
on all bank loans was 1.9 years as of September 30, 2015.

Our bank loans contain customary restrictive covenants, including limitations on liens, limitations on mergers and consolidations and
asset sales, and a financial covenant that requires us to maintain positive consolidated tangible net worth. In addition to other
customary events of default, the bank loans include cross-default provisions and provisions for default if HMC does not maintain
ownership, whether directly or indirectly, of at least 80% of the outstanding capital stock of AHFC or HCFI, as applicable. All of
these covenants and events of default are subject to important limitations and exceptions under the agreements governing the bank
loans. As of September 30, 2015, management believes that AHFC and HCFI were in compliance with all covenants contained in our
bank loans.

Medium Term Note (MTN) Programs
Private MTN Program

AHFC no longer issues MTNs under the Rule 144A Private MTN Program. As of September 30, 2015, the remaining maturities of
Private MTNs outstanding ranged from 239 days to approximately 6.0 years. The weighted average remaining maturities of Private
MTNs was 2.3 years as of September 30, 2015. Interest rates on the Private MTNSs are fixed or floating. Private MTNSs are issued
pursuant to the terms of an issuing and paying agency agreement which requires AHFC to comply with certain covenants, including
negative pledge provisions, and includes customary events of defaults. As of September 30, 2015, management believes that AHFC
was in compliance with all covenants contained in the Private MTNS.

Public MTN Program

AHFC is a “well-known seasoned issuer” under SEC rules and issues Public MTNSs pursuant to a registration statement on Form S-3
filed with the SEC. In August 2015, AHFC increased the authorized maximum aggregate principal amount for issuance under the
Public MTN Program from $16.0 billion to $30.0 billion. In September 2015, AHFC began issuing foreign currency denominated
notes into international markets under this program. The aggregate principal amount of MTNs offered under this program may be
increased from time to time.

The Public MTNs may have original maturities of 9 months or more from the date of issue, may be interest bearing with either fixed
or floating interest rates, or may be discounted notes. During the six months ended September 30, 2015, AHFC issued $3.5 billion
aggregate principal amount of U.S. dollar denominated MTNs, with an original maturity ranging from 2.0 years to 5.0 years, bearing
interest at a fixed and floating rates. During the six months ended September 30, 2015, AHFC issued €1.2 billion (U.S. $1.3 billion,
calculated based on the exchange rate on September 30, 2015 of 0.8957 per U.S. dollar) aggregate principal amount of MTNs with an
original maturity ranging from 3.5 years to 7.2 years bearing interest at a fixed and floating rates. As of September 30, 2015, the
remaining maturities of all Public MTNs outstanding ranged from 7 days to approximately 7.1 years. The weighted average remaining
maturities of all Public MTNs was 2.5 years as of September 30, 2015.

The Public MTNs are issued pursuant to an indenture, which requires AHFC to comply with certain covenants, including negative
pledge provisions and restrictions on AHFC’s ability to merge, consolidate or transfer substantially all of its assets or the assets of its
subsidiaries, and includes customary events of default. As of September 30, 2015, management believes that AHFC was in
compliance with all covenants under the indenture.

43



Euro MTN Programme

The Euro MTN Programme was retired in August 2014. Notes under this program that are currently listed on the Luxembourg Stock
Exchange will remain listed through their maturity. As of September 30, 2015, the remaining maturities of Euro MTNs outstanding
under this program ranged from 19 days to approximately 7.4 years. The weighted average remaining maturities of all Euro MTNs
was 2.4 years as of September 30, 2015.

Other Debt

HCFI issues privately placed Canadian dollar denominated notes. During the six months ended September 30, 2015, HCFI did not
enter into any private placement trades. As of September 30, 2015, the remaining maturities of all of HCFI’s Canadian notes
outstanding ranged from 64 days to approximately 3.9 years. The weighted average remaining maturities of these notes was 2.3 years
as of September 30, 2015.

The notes are issued pursuant to the terms of an indenture, which requires HCFI to comply with certain covenants, including negative
pledge provisions, and includes customary events of default. As of September 30, 2015, management believes that HCFI was in
compliance with all covenants contained in the privately placed notes.

Secured Debt
Asset-Backed Securities

We enter into securitization transactions for funding purposes. Securitization transactions involve transferring pools of retail loans to
statutory trusts. The trusts are special-purpose entities that we establish to accommodate securitization structures. Securitization trusts
have the limited purpose of acquiring assets, issuing asset-backed securities, and making payments on the securities. Assets transferred
to securitization trusts are considered to be legally isolated from us and the claims of our creditors. We continue to service the retail
loans transferred to the trusts. Investors in the notes issued by a trust only have recourse to the assets of such trust and do not have
recourse to AHFC, HCFI, or our other subsidiaries or to other trusts.

Our securitizations are structured to provide credit enhancements to investors in the notes issued by the trusts. Credit enhancements
can include the following:

e Subordinated certificates—which are securities issued by the trusts that are retained by us and are subordinated in priority
of payment to the notes.

e Qvercollateralization—which occurs when the principal balance of securitized assets exceed the balance of securities
issued by the trust.

e Excess interest—which allows excess interest collections to be used to cover losses on defaulted loans.

e Reserve funds—which are restricted cash accounts held by the trusts to cover shortfalls in payments of interest and
principal required to be paid on the notes.

® Yield supplement accounts—which are restricted cash accounts held by the trusts to supplement interest payments on
notes.

We are required to consolidate the securitization trusts in our financial statements, which results in the securitizations being accounted
for as on-balance sheet secured financings. The securitized receivables remain on our consolidated balance sheet along with the notes
issued by the trusts. The notes are secured solely by the assets of the applicable trust and not by any of our other assets or those of
other trusts. The assets of a trust are the only source of funds for repayment on the notes of such trust.

During the six months ended September 30, 2015, we issued notes through asset-backed securitizations totaling $2.2 billion, which are
secured by consumer finance receivables with an initial principal balance of $3.0 billion.

Asset-Backed Conduits

In September 2010, we entered into a receivables loan agreement with a bank-sponsored asset-backed commercial paper conduit to
allow us access to additional secured funding. Under this agreement, we would transfer finance receivables to funding agents as
collateral for debt issued by the funding agents who are contractually committed, at our option, to make advances to us of up to $500
million. This agreement was amended in September 2014 and terminated in September 2015.
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Credit Agreements
Syndicated Bank Credit Facilities

AHFC maintains a $3.5 billion 364 day credit agreement, as amended, which expires on March 4, 2016, and a $3.5 billion five year
credit agreement, as amended, which expires on March 7, 2020. At September 30, 2015, no amounts were outstanding or repaid under
the AHFC credit agreements. AHFC intends to renew or replace the credit agreements prior to or on their respective expiration dates.

HCFI maintains a C$1.6 billion (U.S. $1.2 billion) credit agreement, as amended, which provides that HCFI may borrow up to C$800
million (U.S. $601 million) on a one year and a five-year revolving basis. The one year tranche of the credit agreement expires on
March 24, 2016 and the five year tranche of the credit agreement expires on March 24, 2020. At September 30, 2015, no amounts
were outstanding or repaid under the HCFI credit agreement. HCFI intends to renew or replace the credit agreement prior to or on the
expiration date of each respective tranche.

The credit agreements contain customary conditions to borrowing and customary restrictive covenants, including limitations on liens
and limitations on mergers, consolidations and asset sales. The credit agreements also require AHFC and HCFI, respectively, to
maintain a positive consolidated tangible net worth as defined in their respective credit agreements. The credit agreements, in addition
to other customary events of default, include cross-default provisions and provisions for default if HMC does not maintain ownership,
whether directly or indirectly, of at least 80% of the outstanding capital stock of AHFC or HCFI, as applicable. In addition, the AHFC
and HCFI credit agreements contain provisions for default if HMC’s obligations under the HMC-AHFC Keep Well Agreement or the
HMC-HCFI Keep Well Agreement, as applicable, become invalid, voidable, or unenforceable. All of these conditions, covenants and
events of default are subject to important limitations and exceptions under the agreements governing the credit agreements. As of
September 30, 2015, management believes that AHFC and HCFI were in compliance with all covenants contained in the respective
credit agreements.

Other Credit Agreements

In September 2015, AHFC entered into other committed lines of credit to allow us access to additional $1.0 billion in unsecured
funding with multiple banks. The credit agreements contain customary conditions to borrowing and customary restrictive covenants,
including limitations on liens and limitations on mergers, consolidations and asset sales and a requirement for AHFC to maintain a
positive consolidated tangible net worth. There were no amounts outstanding as of September 30, 2015 and these agreements expire in
September 2016.

Keep Well Agreements

HMC has entered into separate keep well agreements with AHFC and HCFI. Pursuant to the Keep Well Agreements, HMC has agreed
to, among other things:

e own and hold, at all times, directly or indirectly, at least 80% of each of AHFC’s and HCFI’s issued and outstanding
shares of voting stock and not pledge, directly or indirectly, encumber, or otherwise dispose of any such shares or permit
any of HMC’s subsidiaries to do so, except to HMC or wholly owned subsidiaries of HMC;

e cause each of AHFC and HCFI to, on the last day of each of AHFC’s and HCFI’s respective fiscal years, have a positive
consolidated tangible net worth (with “tangible net worth” meaning (a) shareholders’ equity less (b) any intangible assets,
as determined in accordance with GAAP with respect to AHFC and generally accepted accounting principles in Canada
with respect to HCFI); and

e ensure that, at all times, each of AHFC and HCFI has sufficient liquidity and funds to meet their payment obligations
under any Debt (with “Debt” defined as AHFC’s or HCFI’s debt, as applicable, for borrowed money that HMC has
confirmed in writing is covered by the respective keep well agreement) in accordance with the terms of such Debt, or
where necessary, HMC will make available to AHFC or HCFI, as applicable, or HMC will procure for AHFC or HCFI, as
applicable, sufficient funds to enable AHFC or HCFI, as applicable, to pay its Debt in accordance with its terms. AHFC or
HCFT Debt does not include the notes issued by securitization trusts in connection with AHFC’s or HCFI’s secured
financing transactions, any related party debt or any indebtedness outstanding as of September 30, 2015 under AHFC’s
and HCFI’s bank loan agreements.

As consideration for HMC’s obligations under the Keep Well Agreements, we have agreed to pay HMC a quarterly fee based on the
amount of outstanding Debt pursuant to support compensation agreements, dated October 1, 2005. We incurred expenses of $5 million
during both the three months ended September 30, 2015 and 2014, and $9 million during both the six months ended September 30,
2015 and 2014, pursuant to these support compensation agreements.
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Indebtedness of Consolidated Subsidiaries

As of September 30, 2015, AHFC and its consolidated subsidiaries had approximately $53.9 billion of outstanding indebtedness and
other liabilities, including current liabilities, of which approximately $13.3 billion consisted of indebtedness and liabilities of our
consolidated subsidiaries. None of AHFC’s consolidated subsidiaries had any outstanding preferred equity.

Derivatives

We utilize derivative instruments to mitigate exposures to fluctuations in interest rates and foreign currency exchange rates. The types
of derivative instruments include interest rate swaps, basis swaps, and cross currency swaps. Interest rate and basis swap agreements
are used to mitigate the effects of interest rate fluctuations of our floating rate debt relative to our fixed rate finance receivables and
operating lease assets. Cross currency swap agreements are used to manage currency and interest rate risk exposure on foreign
currency denominated debt. The derivative instruments contain an element of credit risk in the event the counterparties are unable to
meet the terms of the agreements.

All derivative financial instruments are recorded on our consolidated balance sheet as assets or liabilities, and carried at fair value.
Changes in the fair value of derivatives are recognized in our consolidated statement of income in the period of the change. Since we
do not elect to apply hedge accounting, the impact to earnings resulting from these valuation adjustments as reported under GAAP is
not representative of our result of operations as evaluated by management. Realized gains and losses on derivative instruments, net of
realized gains and losses on foreign currency denominated debt, are included in the measure of net revenues when we evaluate
segment performance. Refer to Note 14—Segment Information of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited) for
additional information about segment information and Note 5—Derivative Instruments of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Unaudited) for additional information on derivative instruments.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We are not a party to off-balance sheet arrangements.

Contractual Obligations

The following table summarizes our contractual obligations, excluding lending commitments to dealers and derivative obligations, for
the periods indicated:

Payments due for the twelve month periods ending September 30,

Total 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 Thereafter
(U.S. dollars in millions)
Unsecured debt obligations ............ $ 37864 $ 14326 $ 8361 $ 5581 $ 4714 $ 3463 $ 1,419
Secured debt obligations™ ................ 7,194 3,865 2,277 897 155 - -
Interest payments on debt®............... 1,457 475 383 280 180 85 54
Operating lease obligations................ 47 8 7 6 6 4 16
TOtal..ocece $ 46562 $ 18674 $ 11,028 $ 6,764 $ 505 $ 3552 §$ 1,489

(1) Debt obligations reflect the remaining principal obligations of our outstanding debt and do not reflect unamortized debt discounts and fees.
Repayment schedule of secured debt reflects payment performance assumptions on underlying receivables. Foreign currency denominated
debt principal is based on exchange rates as of September 30, 2015.

(2) Interest payments on floating rate and foreign currency denominated debt based on the applicable floating rates and/or exchange rates as of
September 30, 2015.

The obligations in the above table do not include certain lending commitments to dealers since the amount and timing of future
payments is uncertain. Refer to Note 8—Commitments and Contingencies of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)
for additional information on these commitments.

Our contractual obligations on derivative instruments are also excluded from the table above because our future cash obligations under
these contracts are inherently uncertain. We recognize all derivative instruments on our consolidated balance sheet at fair value. The
amounts recognized as fair value do not represent the amounts that will be ultimately paid or received upon settlement under these
contracts. Refer to Note 5—Derivative Instruments of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited) for additional
information on derivative instruments.
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New Accounting Standards

Refer to Note 1(c)—Recently Adopted Accounting Standards and Note 1(d)—Recently Issued Accounting Standards of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited).

Critical Accounting Policies

Critical accounting policies are those accounting policies that require the application of our most difficult, subjective, or complex
judgments, often requiring us to make estimates about the effects of matters that are inherently uncertain and may change in
subsequent periods, or for which the use of different estimates that could have reasonably been used in the current period would have
had a material impact on the presentation of our financial condition, cash flows, and results of operations. The impact and any
associated risks related to these estimates on our financial condition, cash flows, and results of operations are discussed throughout
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation” where such estimates affect reported and
expected financial results. Different assumptions or changes in economic circumstances could result in additional changes to the
determination of the allowance for credit losses and the determination of residual values.

Credit Losses

We maintain an allowance for credit losses for management’s estimate of probable losses incurred on our finance receivables. We also
maintain an estimate for early termination losses on operating lease assets due to lessee defaults and an allowance for credit losses on
past due operating lease rental payments. These estimates are evaluated by management, at minimum, on a quarterly basis.

Consumer finance receivables are collectively evaluated for impairment. Delinquencies and losses are monitored on an ongoing basis
and this historical experience provides the primary basis for estimating the allowance. Management utilizes various methodologies
when estimating the allowance for credit losses including models which incorporate vintage loss and delinquency migration analysis.
These models take into consideration attributes of the portfolio, including loan-to-value ratios, internal and external credit scores, and
collateral types. Market and economic factors such as used vehicle prices, unemployment rates, and consumer debt service burdens are
also incorporated into these models. Estimated losses on operating leases expected to terminate early due to lessee defaults are also
determined collectively, consistent with the methodologies used for consumer finance receivables.

Dealer finance receivables are individually evaluated for impairment when specifically identified as impaired. Dealer finance
receivables are considered to be impaired when it is probable that we will be unable to collect all amounts due according to the
original terms of the loan. Our determination of whether dealer loans are impaired is based on evaluations of dealership payment
history, financial condition, and cash flows, and their ability to perform under the terms of the loans. Dealer loans that have not been
specifically identified as impaired are collectively evaluated for impairment.

Refer to Note 2—Finance Receivables of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited) for additional information
regarding charge-offs or write-downs of contractual balances of retail and dealer finance receivables.

Our allowance for credit losses and early termination losses on operating leases requires significant judgment about inherently
uncertain factors. The estimates are based on management’s evaluation of many factors, including our historical credit loss experience,
the value of the underlying collateral, delinquency trends, and economic conditions. The estimates are based on information available
as of each reporting date. Actual losses may differ from the original estimates due to actual results varying from those assumed in our
estimates. Refer to Note 3—Investment in Operating Leases of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited) for additional
information.

Sensitivity Analysis

If we had experienced a 10% increase in net charge-offs of finance receivables during the twelve month period ended September 30,
2015, our provision for credit losses would have increased by approximately $20 million during the period. Similarly, if we had
experienced a 10% increase in realized losses on the disposition of repossessed operating lease vehicles during the twelve month
period ended September 30, 2015, we would have recognized an additional $11 million in early termination losses in our consolidated
statement of income during the period.
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Determination of Lease Residual Values

Contractual residual values of lease vehicles are determined at lease inception based on expectations of future used vehicle values,
taking into consideration external industry data and our own historical experience. Lease customers have the option at the end of the
lease term to return the vehicle to the dealer or to buy the vehicle at the contractual residual value (or if purchased prior to lease
maturity, for the outstanding contractual balance). Returned lease vehicles can be purchased by the grounding dealer at the contractual
residual value (or if purchased prior to lease maturity, for the outstanding contractual balance) or a market based price. Returned lease
vehicles that are not purchased by the grounding dealer are sold through online and physical auctions. We are exposed to risk of loss
on the disposition of returned lease vehicles when the proceeds from the sale of the vehicles are less than the contractual residual
values at the end of lease term. We assess our estimates for end of term market values of the leased vehicles, at minimum, on a
quarterly basis. The primary factors affecting the estimates are the percentage of leased vehicles that we expect to be returned by the
lessee at the end of lease term and the expected loss severity. Factors considered in this evaluation include, among other factors,
economic conditions, historical trends and market information on new and used vehicles.

For operating leases, adjustments to estimated residual values are made on a straight-line basis over the remaining term of each lease
and are included as depreciation expense. For direct financing leases, downward adjustments for declines in estimated residual values
deemed to be other-than-temporary are recognized as a loss on lease residual values in the period in which the estimate changed.

Sensitivity Analysis

If future estimated auction values for all outstanding operating leases as of September 30, 2015 were to decrease by $100 per unit
from our current estimates, the total impact would be an increase of approximately $50 million in depreciation expense, which would
be recognized over the remaining lease terms. If future return rates for all operating leases were to increase by one percentage point
from our current estimates, the total impact would be an increase of approximately $8 million in depreciation expense, which would
be recognized over the remaining lease terms. Similarly, if the future estimated auction values were to decrease by $100 per unit and
future return rates were to increase by one percentage point from our current estimates for all direct financing leases as of September
30, 2015, we would have recognized an increase of approximately $1 million and less than $1 million in losses on lease residual
values, respectively. This sensitivity analysis may be asymmetric and is specific to the conditions in effect as of September 30, 2015.
Additionally, any declines in auction values are likely to have a negative effect on return rates which could affect the severity of the
impact on our results of operations.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

We have omitted this section pursuant to General Instruction H(2) of Form 10-Q.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer have performed an evaluation of the Company's disclosure controls
and procedures, as that term is defined in Rule 13a-15(e) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the Exchange Act), as
of September 30, 2015, and each has concluded that such disclosure controls and procedures are effective, at the reasonable assurance
level, to ensure that information required to be disclosed in our periodic reports filed under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed,
summarized and reported within the time periods specified by the SEC's rules and forms, and such information is accumulated and
communicated to management, including our Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer, as appropriate to allow
timely decisions regarding required disclosures. Our management recognizes that any controls and procedures, no matter how well
designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving their objectives, and management necessarily applies its
judgment in evaluating the cost-benefit relationship of possible controls and procedures.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in the internal control over financial reporting during the quarter ended September 30, 2015, that have
materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
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PART Il - OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

For more information on our legal proceedings, see Note 8—Commitments and Contingencies—Legal Proceedings and Regulatory
Matters of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited), which is incorporated by reference herein.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

There are no material changes to the risk factors set forth under “Item 1A. Risk Factors” in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended March 31, 2015, which was filed with the SEC on June 26, 2015, and our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended June 30, 2015, which was filed with the SEC on August 10, 2015.

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds

We have omitted this section pursuant to General Instruction H(2) of Form 10-Q.

Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities

We have omitted this section pursuant to General Instruction H(2) of Form 10-Q.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable.

Item 5. Other Information

None.

Item 6. Exhibits
Refer to the Exhibit Index immediately following the Signature page.
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Signature

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its
behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

Dated: November 10, 2015

AMERICAN HONDA FINANCE
CORPORATION

By: /s/ Paul C. Honda

Paul C. Honda
Vice President and Assistant Secretary
(Principal Accounting Officer)
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AMERICAN HONDA FINANCE CORPORATION

Exhibit Index

Exhibit

Number Description

3.19 Articles of Incorporation of American Honda Finance Corporation, dated February 6, 1980, and Certificates of
Amendment to the Articles of Incorporation, dated March 29, 1984, November 13, 1988, December 4, 1989, July 2,
1991, April 3, 1997, November 30, 1999, and December 17, 2003.

3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of American Honda Finance Corporation, dated April 27, 2010.

4.1® Form of Specimen Common Stock of American Honda Finance Corporation.

4.2 American Honda Finance Corporation agrees to furnish to the Securities and Exchange Commission upon request a
copy of each instrument with respect to issues of long-term debt of American Honda Finance Corporation and its
subsidiaries, the authorized principal amount of which does not exceed 10% of the consolidated assets of the American
Honda Finance Corporation and its subsidiaries.

4.39 Amended and Restated Issuing and Paying Agency Agreement between American Honda Finance Corporation and
The Bank of New York Mellon, dated as of August 27, 2012.

4.4 Trust Indenture between Honda Canada Finance Inc., as issuer, and BNY Trust Company of Canada (as successor to
CIBC Mellon Trust Company), as trustee, dated as of September 26, 2005®, as supplemented by supplemental
indentures from time to time, and the Form of Debenture®.

4,50 Indenture, dated September 5, 2013, between American Honda Finance Corporation and Deutsche Bank Trust
Company Americas, as trustee.

4.6 Form of Fixed Rate Medium-Term Note, Series A® and Form of Floating Rate Medium-Term Note, Series A,

12.1@ Statement regarding computation of ratio of earnings to fixed charges

31.1® Certification of Principal Executive Officer

31.2® Certification of Principal Financial Officer

32,19 Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350

32.20 Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350

101.INS® XBRL Instance Document

101.SCH® XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

101.CAL® XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document

101.LAB® XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document

101.PRE® XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document

101.DEF® XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document

(1) Incorporated herein by reference to the same numbered Exhibit filed with our registration statement on Form 10, dated June 28, 2013.

(2)  Incorporated herein by reference to the same numbered Exhibit filed with our registration statement on Form 10, amendment No. 1, dated
August 7, 2013.

(3) Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit number 4.5 filed with our registration statement on Form 10, amendment No. 1, dated August 7,

2013.

(4)  Incorporated herein by reference to the same numbered Exhibit filed with our quarterly report on Form 10-Q, dated February 12, 2015.
(5) Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit number 4.1 filed with our registration statement on Form S-3, dated September 5, 2013.
(6) Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit number 4.1 filed with our current report on Form 8-K, dated February 12, 2014.

(7)  Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit number 4.2 filed with our current report on Form 8-K, dated September 25, 2013.

(8)  Filed herewith.

(9)  Furnished herewith.
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Exhibit 12.1

American Honda Finance Corporation and Subsidiaries
Calculation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges
(U.S. dollars in millions)

Three months ended Six months ended
September 30, September 30,
2015 2014 2015 2014

Earnings
Consolidated income before provision for income taxes ..................... $ 364 $ 407 $ 711 % 860
FIXEd CRANGES . .coeveeeiiitiieeisie e 144 147 285 298

BAININGS ..ttt $ 508 $ 554  $ 99 $ 1,158
Fixed Charges
INEEIESE EXPENSE.....vevivevieeteteet it etete ettt et eee et re et ete et re s reen s ebene e $ 143  $ 146  $ 283 3% 296
Interest portion of rental eXpense Y .........cc.ooovveveiereeiseeeeeee e, 1 1 2 2

Total fiXed CRAIGES .....cvcveiievieeciceeceee e, $ 144 $ 147  $ 285 % 298
Ratio of earnings to fixed Charges.........ccoevviriiiineisineecseeens 3.53x 3.77x 3.49x 3.89x

(1)  One-third of all rental expense is deemed to be interest.



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Hideo Moroe, certify that:

1.

I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2015 of American Honda Finance
Corporation;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented
in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(@) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under
our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this
report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions):

(@ All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial
information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Dated: November 10, 2015

By: /s/ Hideo Moroe
Hideo Moroe
President
(Principal Executive Officer)




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Shinji Kubaru, certify that:

1.

I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2015 of American Honda Finance
Corporation;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods
presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(@) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under
our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is
made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this
report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions):

(@ Allsignificant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial
information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Dated: November 10, 2015

By: /s/ Shinji Kubaru

Shinji Kubaru
Vice President and Treasurer
(Principal Financial Officer)



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002*

In connection with the Quarterly Report of American Honda Finance Corporation (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended September 30, 2015 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Hideo Moroe,
President and Principal Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the United
States Code, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to the best of my knowledge:

1.  The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company.

Dated: November 10, 2015

By:/s/ Hideo Moroe
Hideo Moroe
President
(Principal Executive Officer)

*A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to American Honda Finance Corporation and
will be retained by American Honda Finance Corporation and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon
request.



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002*

In connection with the Quarterly Report of American Honda Finance Corporation (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended September 30, 2015 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Shinji Kubaru,
Vice President, Treasurer and Principal Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18
of the United States Code, as adopted pursuant to 8 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to the best of my knowledge:

1.  The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company.

Dated: November 10, 2015

By:/s/ Shinji Kubaru
Shinji Kubaru
Vice President and Treasurer
(Principal Financial Officer)

*A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to American Honda Finance Corporation and
will be retained by American Honda Finance Corporation and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon
request.



